
NOTICE 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

 

Date:   September 10, 2024 

Time: 6:00 pm CST 

Place: Board Room, Room 205 (310 Chieftain Street)  

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order 

2. Approval of the agenda   

3. Approval of the Consent Agenda items: 
a) Approval of the minutes: 

i. Regular meeting dated August 14, 2024 
b) Licenses and Permits: 

i. Temporary Alcohol Beverage License 
a. Christian Community Homes – September 14, 2024 

ii. Operator’s Licenses 
a. Michelle Jorgensen – Lucky Seven 
b. Lily Metheny – Tippy Canoes 
c. Jayden Yanez – Lucky Seven 
d. Trudy Thiel – Christian Community Homes 

iii. Special Event Permits 
a. Valley Brew Fest 
b. Pumpkin Express 

c) Board, Committee, Commission and Agency Reports: 
i. Admin & Finance August 8, 2024   (Committee approved September 5, 2024) 

ii. Airport Commission July 15, 2024  (Commission approved August 19, 2024) 
iii. Library Board  July 11, 2024  (Commission approved August 8, 2024) 
iv. Planning Commission August 6, 2024  (Commission approved September 3, 2024) 

d) Approval of vouchers payable 
e) Budget summary 

4. Public input and ideas (Limit 5 minutes per speaker)  

5. Reports: 

a) Staff reports  

i. Library 

ii. Fire  

iii. Police 

iv. Public Works 

v. Utilities 

vi. Building Inspection 

vii. Administration 

b) Chamber of Commerce/Mainstreet 

1 of 148



Page | 2  

6. Other business – discussion and possible action re: 

a) Additional 2024-2025 Poll Worker Appointments 

b) New Oakey Park Parking 

c) Building HVAC System 

d) Impact Fee and Needs Assessment 

e) Pinnacle Development Concept 

f) Remove Interim for the Police Chief 

g) Post for 2 Police Officer Positions 

h) Fire Hall Roof 

i) Skatepark Update 

j) New Administrator Review Process 

7. The Board may consider going into closed session pursuant to Wisconsin Statue §19.85(1)(c) to consider 

employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over 

which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. This pertains to salaries and 

levels for police officers.  

8. The Board will come out of closed session proceedings and may act on items discussed in 

closed session. 

9. Future agenda items and updates  

10. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Power of 10 are the 10 most significant assets in the community identified by the Board. They are listed below: 

1. Schools 
2. Airport 
3. Industrial Park 
4. River 

5. Falls 
6. Downtown Businesses 
7. Personalization/Historic of Downtown Feel 
8. Access to major population center 

9. Medical Services 
10. Recreational opportunities and the Braves 

(tied ranking for number 10) 

 

NOTE: It is possible that members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be present at the above scheduled meeting to gather information 
about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other 
than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Meetings may be recorded for public viewing and record retention.  
 
Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 
additional information or to request this service, contact Village Hall at (715) 294-3498. 

2 of 148



APPROVED:  

 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING PROCEEDINGS 

August 14, 2024 
 

The Village of Osceola met for a Regular meeting on August 14, 2024, at Village Hall. Village President Lutz called 
the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
Present: Brad Lutz, Van Burch, Arvid Maki, Ron Pedrys, Mike Sine, and Marsha Hovey 
Absent: Neil Kline 
Staff present: Devin Swanberg, Carie Krentz, Ann Miller, Todd Waters, Rick Caruso, Andrew Bach, Paul Elfstrom 
and Joey Cutts 
 
Motion by Hovey and seconded by Maki to approve the agenda. 
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Motion by Sine and seconded by Burch to approve the consent agenda except 3biv, Special Event Permits.  
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
3biv: Special Events Permits: 
Sine has an issue with permits not being complete. No phone numbers included on Fun Run and map area exceeds 
Village land. Also mentioned insurance, which was provided by both applicants. Krentz stated insurance is not 
included in packet due to dollar amounts being listed on some and that memo stated both have been received. 
Discussion took place, the phone numbers for Fun Run are Brad Lutz’s 715-417-2097 and Kelly Kneath is 715-
220-5979. Discussion directed staff to push applicants to complete applications fully for approval. 
 
Motion by Maki and seconded by Sine to approve Fun Run with numbers being added and to table Valley Brewfest 
until September.       Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Public input and ideas (Limit 5 minutes per speaker)  
n/a 
 
Reports:  Staff reports  

Utilities: Caruso reviewed his memo to the board. 
Library: Miller reviewed Library Director memo. 
Fire: Elfstrom went through runs for the month of July with 10 runs total last month, 8 in Village of Osceola 
and 2 in Town of Farmington and reviewed his memo and stated they need to airplane simulation training.  
Police: Bach stated the PD generated 368 calls, 50 incidents and traffic reports with 3 arrests. Officers had 
64 traffic stops and issued 30 municipal citations. St. Croix Falls responded 21 times with 1 arrest and 
reviewed his memo to the board. 
Public Works: Waters reviewed his memo to the board. 
Building Inspection: Swanberg focused on year-to-date this year compared to last year. Village has seen a 
larger value this year compared to last year due to 3 large commercial projects. Single family homes are 
higher this year compared to last year as well. There is an increase in permits which is a good trend, with a 
6% increase in equalized value all showing our community is growing.  
Administration: Swanberg thanked the election crew for running yesterday’s election. Yellow house demo 
is moving forward and starting tomorrow. Submitted claim for Cascade Falls to the State. Started meeting 
with department on budget.  

 Chamber of Commerce/Mainstreet: Wyatt Yager, Main Street Director, reviewed the memo to the board. 
 
Other business – discussion and possible action re: 
County Recycling Program location 
Waters state the benefits for all communities of the recycle bins and acknowledges there have been issues with their 
current location. Recommending bins be moved closer to Hwy 35 within same parking lot to avoid the speed that 
has been disruptive to the fire department. Board feels Water/Elstrom can work to find the best location. 

3 of 148



 

 Page | 2  

 
2024 Road Maintenance CIP – Asphalt Replacement 
Swanberg stated two weeks ago we put a request for bids for pavement replacement schedule for 2024 and quotes 
came back very high due to requesting in the summer. Recommending we move the $110,000 for this project to 
2025 CIP and go back out for bids at the end of this year to be completed next year. Discussion on the which roads 
this includes and they are 4th Avenue & Hill, a portion of 3rd Avenue, and Gerald & Marvin Street. 
 
Motion by Lutz and seconded by Burch to move CIP-R006 to 2025. 
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Discussion and Adoption of Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) per Resolution #24-11 
Drew Lindh from MSA Professional Services stated the goal of the CIP is avoid reactive spending, give a plan on 
projects that should be addressed and when. Lindh went over revision #1 of Plan and the current state. 
Acknowledges should have been back sooner with summer having flown by. Issue that still needs to be addressed, 
when a project amount is larger than borrow capacity another financial source needs to be found to make that project 
work. These larger projects are in plan for informative purposes but need additional financing sources. 
 
Lindh addressed priority levels of projects, which were not in the scope of MSA services for this plan. If hire MSA 
to work on plan again, that can be incorporated into their services provided. Projects were put where they are due 
to discussions with staff and department heads. These are definite years for each project they are put there for 
planning purposes. Swanberg stated with each borrow (every two years) there will be an approval process for project 
funding. Looking for approval of the CIP plan for a guidance tool moving forward. Discussion on when larger 
projects become a priority and items in the 2024 plan. 
 
Lindh went over the cost calculator within the plan which shows all departments working together within the budget 
amount. Was asked why utility was included in plan, firstly because we were able to include their borrow with 
Village’s to save on loan costs and secondly because when applying for additional funding, for example DNR, they 
give out points to have this information included in the plan making it a communication tool when applying for 
other sources of funding. Went on to highlight total budget included in plan with a 5% inflation for planning 
purposes and creating another TID district would provide relief with plenty of room for growth and opportunities 
within the Village. Thanked all department heads for their time. 
 
Motion by Burch and seconded by Maki to approve CIP 2025-2029 per Resolution #24-11 as presented. 
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Creation of TID #4 
Swanberg has developments looking at the south of town and is requesting approval to move forward in creating 
TID #4. This would require a set of meetings, creation of boundaries and let board know that rules are expected to 
change in 2025 and is looking to capture current 2024 rules in this creation. This creation will have a 15-year life 
of the TID and area looking at is south of Kwik Trip around 68th all way above Kage. Also, some of the 
Administrator’s wages get to be charged for work on the TID as well. Infrastructure that would be done through 
this TID are water and sewer along with road improvements.  
 
Motion by Burch and seconded by Pedrys to direct staff to create TID #4. 
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
Taxiway D improvements made by Patrick Brown 
Swanberg stated this is simple agreement giving Pat Brown indemnification from creating improvements on 
Taxiway D within the Airport was built to Village code and paid for by him. Burch expressed his thanks to Pat 
Brown for paying for the improvements to have more safety for those hangars that use it. Discussion on how this 
came about, was approved by Airport Commission and received building permit. 
 
Motion by Burch and seconded by Maki to approve agreement with Patrick Brown as presented. 
           Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
2024 Budget and 2025 Proposed Ambulance Budget 

4 of 148



 

 Page | 3  

Swanberg stated they are looking for all communities to approve their budget included in the packet, with a nominal 
increase of $30 for the Village.  
 
Motion by Sine and seconded by Hovey to approve 2024 budget and 2025 proposed ambulance budget as presented.  
           Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
ATV/UTV ordinance review & discussion 
Swanberg stated after review of State Statue, there was no timeframe included to change Village ordinance to match. 
Currently our ordinance matches what the County has stated in their ordinances. Discussion on why this was being 
looked at and with no state statue to reference for times to follow, it was decided to keep as is for the time being.  
 
CE Wurzer Ridge Road Development Concept 
Swanberg stated that Jason Wurzer with CE Wurzer attended the Planning Commission meeting to present a 
development concept to for Ridge Road. He pointed out that is a concept design and is looking for recommendation 
to move forward with a purchase and development agreement before they spend any more money on the 
development. This would be part of TID #3. This was recommended to move forward by the Planning Commission. 
Pedrys wants Board to be aware of keeping Village a river town and keep the layout how we want them, Swanberg 
stated this is zoned R3 back in 2010 and fits into what is expected to be built in that area. 
 
Motion by Sine and seconded by Lutz to enter into purchase and development agreement with CE Wurzer for Ridge 
Road.         Ayes-6  Nay-0  Motion carried 
 
Mount Hope Cemetery Survey and Discussion 
Swanberg this was also presented at Planning Commission last week to purchase a parcel of land that is found in 
the survey that was just completed. This parcel has to do with left field which falls into the cemetery. The Planning 
Commission recommend that parcel be purchased by the Village. By purchasing it would alleviate the issue with 
the cemetery.  
 
Motion by Sine and seconded by Burch to enter into negotiations with Mount Home Cemetery to purchase portion 
of land.       Ayes-5(Lutz abstained) Nay-0  Motion carried 
 
Motion by Burch and seconded by Hovey to go into closed session proceedings at 7:45 p.m. pursuant to Wisconsin 
Statute §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or to 
conduct other specified public business, for competitive or bargaining reasons. This pertains to purchase and 
development of parcel #165-00582-0300 as well as purchase of acres from Mount Hope Cemetery Association. 

Roll Call Vote: Sine, Burch, Lutz, Pedrys, Maki, Hovey   Nayes-0 Motion carried. 
 
Back in open session at 8:05 pm 
 
Motion by Hovey and seconded by Sine to move forward with purchase and development agreement with CE 
Wurzer on parcel #165-00582-0300 as discussed in closed session.   
        Ayes-6  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Motion by Maki and seconded by Pedrys to move to counteroffer with purchase of acres with Mount Home 
Cemetery Association as discussed in closed session.     
       Ayes-5(Lutz abstained) Nays-0  Motion carried 
Future agenda items and updates  
Sine liquor store parking lot update, Simmon Drive revisit contract language to make sure it’s being met, 
procurement procedures. 
 
President Lutz adjourned the meeting at 8:10 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by  
Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 

5 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Village Board  

From: Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 

Cc: Devin Swanberg, Village Administrator 

Date: September 6, 2024 

Re: Temporary Liquor Licenses 

 
The Village has accepted the below application for Alcohol License:   

 
i. Temporary (Picnic) Class B Beer and Wine Licenses for Christian Community 

Homes, event is Pancake Breakfast Fall Fest to be held on September 14, 2024. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFO 
Full application was received late Thursday, September 5, 2024 and due to timeframe and 
staff on vacation to complete background checks, they were not available for packet. No 
license will be issued if background checks come back with unexpected information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The applicant has completed application requirements and Village staff recommends 
approval pending background checks.  
 

6 of 148



7 of 148



8 of 148



9 of 148



10 of 148



11 of 148



12 of 148



13 of 148



14 of 148



15 of 148



16 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Village Board  

From: Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 

Cc: Devin Swanberg, Village Administrator 

Date: September 5, 2024 

Re: Regular Operator Licenses 

The Village has accepted applications for a Regular Operator license from the following:  

i. Jayden Yanez; 

ii. Lily Metheny; 

iii. Michelle Jorgenson; and 

iv. Trudy Thiel. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The applicants i-iii have completed background checks and education requirements for license. 
Village staff recommends approval with no additional conditions. 

Applicant iv submitted application late on Thursday, September 5, 2024 and currently has a 
license with Town of Black Brook. Due to timeframe and staff on vacation to complete 
background check, this was not available for packet. Village staff recommends approval 
pending the background check. 

 

 

17 of 148



18 of 148



19 of 148



20 of 148



21 of 148



22 of 148



23 of 148



24 of 148



25 of 148



26 of 148



27 of 148



28 of 148



                                             Memo 

 
 

1 

 
 
 

To: Village Board 

From: Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 

CC:   Devin Swanberg, Administrator 

Date: September 6, 2024 

Re: Special Events Permits 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
Applicants  

i. Valley Brew Fest  
ii. Pumpkin Express 

 
Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Applicants are requesting approval of a Special Event Permit. 
 
ANALYSIS 
1. Valley Brew Fest: 

Agent:    Shirley Johnson, Brew Fest Coordinator 
Event Date:   Saturday, October 5, 2024 from 7:30 am to 7:00 pm 
Location: Oakey Park 
Recommendation(s): Village departments have reviewed the application; insurance has been 

provided and recommend approval with the following condition: 
Condition(s):  

1. Permit holder is responsible for caution tape. 
2. Map location has been reviewed and within Village limits. 
3. All other requirements as stipulated in the local Village Code 

or language in the Permit Application. 
Note: All conditions are stated within the permit language or already 
discussed with event leadership. 

 
2. Pumpkin Express: 

Agent:    Billie Rocarek, Guest Service & Depot Manager 
Event Date:   Weekend of October 18-20, 2024 
Location: Train Depot, Depot Road 
Recommendation(s): Village departments have reviewed the application; insurance has been 

provided and recommend approval with the following condition: 
Condition(s):  

1. Follow map parking restrictions provided or vehicles may be 
towed. 

2. All other requirements as stipulated in the local Village Code 
or language in the Permit Application. 

Note: All conditions are stated within the permit language or already 
discussed with event leadership. 

 
 
 

29 of 148



 Page 2 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The applications have been reviewed by Village Department heads with conditions listed above; the 
recommendation is to approve applications. 

30 of 148



31 of 148



32 of 148



33 of 148



34 of 148



35 of 148



36 of 148



37 of 148



38 of 148



39 of 148



40 of 148



41 of 148



42 of 148



43 of 148



44 of 148



45 of 148



46 of 148



47 of 148



48 of 148



49 of 148



50 of 148



51 of 148



52 of 148



 

Page 1 
 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE PROCEEDINGS 
August 8, 2024 

 
The Village of Osceola Administration & Finance Committee met on August 8, 2024, at Village Hall. Chair Burch called 
the meeting to order at 7:30 am. 
    
Present: Brad Lutz, Van Burch and Ron Pedrys 
Staff present: Devin Swanberg, Carie Krentz, Andrew Bach and Paul Elfstrom 
 
Motion by Lutz and seconded by Pedrys to approve the agenda. 

Ayes-3  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Motion by Pedrys and seconded by Lutz to approve the minutes dated July 3, 2024.  

Ayes-3  Nays-0  Motion carried 
 
Discussion and Possible Action re:  
Police Combination with City of St. Croix Falls 
Swanberg gave a handout of the summary of the letter from St. Croix Falls received last Friday. Currently at a stall mate in 
negotiations, waiting to see the State Innovation Grant opportunities that should come out next week and if there is favorable 
outcomes with grants St. Croix Falls would like to continue negotiations if not, would be done and not move forward.   
 
Burch went through his experience with these negotiations and does not agree with what has been proposed by St. Croix 
Falls. Pedrys agreed and felt there has not been good faith during these negotiations, there are two different structured 
departments and feels both work but there should be some comprise on both sides and doesn’t feel St. Croix has been willing 
to do that. The Village has held off on hiring and moving our department forward to show our good faith in these negotiations 
and feels the department can be built back up to full staff. Bach initially felt it was going well and at this point does not 
want to shut this door because there are still moving items that may impact the outcome. Swanberg stated we will know 
more next week.  
 
Yellow House demo update 
Swanberg stated Minocqua Grading will here next week to demo the house, which should take 2-3 days. Once done a grand 
opening will be scheduled for the Skatepark. Current residence plan to empty house on Monday.  
 
Fire Department Roof 
Swanberg started with in our 2024 CIP we budgeted $70K for a new roof for the Fire Department building. Elfstrom received 
3 quotes that are coming in around $100K. Elfstrom stated previously he had two bids that came in lower. He received bids 
from McCarty Construction at $96K, Lindus Construction at $151,375 and Sunrise Remodelers at $94,574. All these options 
are with a steel roof. The current roof is currently leaking every time it rains due to no flashing being put in. The increase 
is mainly due to increase in labor costs to maintain staffing. This is an increase of $30K from what is listed in 2024 CIP for 
this item, which is why it is being brought to committee. 
 
Discussion on each bid and what is included in pricing. Elfstrom offered the remaining funds in the departments building 
maintenance of about $13K if that was needed. Lutz offered Village to cover half of the overages and Fire Department to 
raise the other half. This was not an option for Elfstrom. Pedrys asked Elfstrom to get bids with high quality shingles and 
bring back to next meeting.  
 
Audit update 
Swanberg stated we are supposed to see sometime in August; due to auditor dealing with a detached retina for the month of 
June, has delayed a bit. Expecting to receive the 2023 Audit very shortly.  
 
Budget update 
Swanberg and Batchelor are meeting with all department heads next week. Seeing a 3% increase in shared revenue from 
the State, which is about $3,300, very small increase. We had a 6% increase in our equalized value unofficially. Expecting 
to know our levy limit in a week to two weeks still. Reminded members Village had a $150K deficit last year however that 

53 of 148



 

Page 2 
 

was down from approximately $300K the year before that, trending in the right direction. Budget workshops to happen in 
September and October and wrapping up in November. Looking at creation of TID #4, that will be presented at next weeks 
agenda. The TIDs will help us do street projects that we may not otherwise be able to accomplish.  
 
Future Agenda items and Updates  
n/a 
 
Chair Burch adjourned the meeting at 8:20 am. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by 
 
Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 
 

54 of 148



Osceola Airport Commission Meeting Minutes 

Date: July 15, 2024 

                  

1. Called to order by Greene at 4:07pm. Members present: Greene, Lee, Melin, and 
Johnson.  

        Public: Matt Stewart (SEH), Steve Kennedy, Paul Elfstrom, Devin Swanberg 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda: 1 Greene; 2 Melin (4 I, 0 NA) 

3. Approval of the minutes (March 18, 2024): 1 Lee; 2 Melin (4 I, 0 NA) 

4. Invoices for payment:  None.  

 

5.  Airport Financials:  General discussion of finances.  Village administrator Swanberg 

was present and able to help with some of the commissions reoccurring financial 

statement interpretation questions.  The group identified some odd categories 

regularly presented that need to be cleaned up.  There was also discussion of possibly 

finding a more complete way to track reoccurring public works charges to the airport.  

Swanberg stated he would work on the transaction detail report. 

 

Swanberg Let the Airport commission know that the Village would like to begin 

Charging the Airport an administrative fee- for book keeping and billing.  The proposed 

amount would be $10,000.00 per year.  The justification is that the library and fire 

department pay a similar fee.  Greene stated he did not like the idea. Stating that the 

airport historically has not been cash positive, and the additional fee would deplete 

any temporary Airport surplus much sooner.  Lee, Johnson, and Melin Voiced similar 

comments. 

 

6. Reports: 

a.- Manager’s Report- No significant updates or issues. 

    

7. Other Business: 

     

a. Airport Master Plan General Discussion.  Matt Stewart from SEH indicated the Master 

Plan is underway.  The first Stakeholder advisory committee meeting has been 

scheduled for August 12th.  Some of the first items to take place in regard to the master 

planning include a site visit which will assess safety areas, terrain grades etc.  There 

will also be aerial mapping taking place with a “leaf on tree” requirement.  This 

hopefully will be completed before late fall. 

 

55 of 148



b. Airport Ordinance Revisions: Tabled 

 

c. Northeast Airport out-building:  The outbuilding suffered significant storm damage a 

couple days after the last Airport meeting.  Johnson received a quote from Gregory 

Contracting of $54,802.00 to repair the damage.  The Insurance company placed a 

similar value of damage to the building, but after depreciation calculations was only 

able to offer a cash option of $31623.00.  There would be approximately $5400.00 

additional recoverable depreciation once all repairs are complete. J&S contracting 

had submitted an estimate of $21700.00 to remove the outbuilding and return the 

area to a level site.   The group discussed the options.  Motion by Lee to remove the 

outbuilding - Second by Melin (4I, 0 NA) Motion passed.  

 

  

d. The Glider Association Lease Agreement:  The glider club has arranged their glider 

storage trailers in an acceptable fashion to meet the needs of fire protection.  The 

Glider lease agreement still needs to be updated. 

   

e. Budget: Tabled for August Meeting 

 

8.  Future agenda items and updates 

a. Greene mentioned the need to draft a liability release for the Improvements 

made to Taxiway D by Mr. Patrick Brown. 

 

b. Adjourn – Meeting adjourned at 5:31pm 

56 of 148



 
Library Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Regular Meeting July 11th, 2024 

 

Trustees Present: Taylor Baert, Gail Hanson, Ron Johnson, Michele Merritt, Maureen Rogers, Deb Rose 

Trustees Absent: Arvid Maki 

Also present: Director Anne Miller, Cheryl Beardslee from FOTL 

 

President Michele Merritt called the meeting to order at 5:30. 

 

Motion to approve the agenda by Gail, seconded by Taylor.  Carried unanimously. 

  

Motion to approve the Minutes for the June regular meeting by Deb.  Seconded by Maureen.  

Carried unanimously.    

 

Citizens’ Comments – Cheryl reported that the Friends of the Library bank account is looking 

good as a result of the recent strong book sales and the garage sale.  They have also had some 

success recruiting volunteers for the book sales. 

 

Director’s Report – Anne reported that June was a busy month with the garage sale of surplus 

library items, clearing out the off-site storage unit, attending a library symposium, kicking off the 

Summer Learning Program, adding additional learning events, and hosting school groups.   

 

Monthly Financials – Motion to approve the financial report by Maureen, seconded by Taylor.  

Carried unanimously. 

 

Audit and Approve Bills – Motion to pay the bills by Ron, seconded by Deb.  Carried 

unanimously. 

 

Volunteer Policy – The board reviewed the policy and the volunteer application form.  Motion 

made by Deb, seconded by Gail, to approve the Volunteer Policy with a couple of very minor 

changes.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gifts and Naming Rights Policy – The library already has a Gifts Policy, but no Naming Rights 

Policy.  These two policies will be rolled into one.  Anne drafted the new policy based on one 

used by the Kenosha Public Library.  Katelyn Noack with IFLS also advised Anne about naming 

rights.  The board felt that the new policy looks good, but wanted to make sure that it does not 

affect past donors in any negative way.  Michele will speak with former members of Millpond 

Learning Foundation to see if promises made to past donors may be affected by the new policy.  

Anne will also check with IFLS staff on this. 

 

 

 

57 of 148



 
Library Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Regular Meeting July 11th, 2024 

 

2025 Library Budget – Anne, Michele, and Deb met earlier to start working on the budget for 

2025.  They presented several budget proposals to the board and will be further fine-tuning the 

numbers.  Anne will be attending a budget webinar put on by IFLS. 

 

Anne shared information on Library Trustee Training Week which will be held from August 19 

to August 23.  The webinars can be attended individually, or if more than one person is interested 

in a particular session, we could reserve a room at the library. 

 

Next Meeting – Thursday, August 8, at 5:30 pm.  The meeting will be held downstairs in Room 

105 due to the large upstairs conference room getting set up for the August 13 election. 

  

President Merritt declared the meeting adjourned at 7:06 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted by 

Ron Johnson, Library Board Secretary 

58 of 148



 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING PROCEEDINGS 
August 6, 2024 

 
The Plan Commission of the Village of Osceola met on August 6, 2024, to hold a regular monthly 
meeting. Brad Lutz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Present: Brad Lutz, Kim O’Connell, Chelsea Kruse, Dennis Tomfohrde, Mike Sine, Rob Bullard and  
Absent: Bill Chantelois V 
Others present: Devin Swanberg, Tanya Batchelor and several others from public.   
 
Motion to approve the agenda was made by Sine, second by Bullard.   
     Motion passed 6-0 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, July 2, 2024, as presented, was made by 
O’Connell, second by Tomfohrde.     Motion passed 6-0  
 
Presentation of Comprehensive Plan – Emily Herald, MSA 
Emily gave a brief review of the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Public Comment period and Plan Commission Review 
O’Connell asked if the Village has extra-territorial agreements in place outside the village 1.5 miles.  If 
not, he suggested looking into that. He also had concerns that no overlay districts are shown. Chapter 9, 
Land Use still needs heavy review. The future land use map isn’t quite right south of town. Compatibility 
standards listed, he felt do not make sense.   
 
Other Commission members made comments and asked questions.  
 
Tom Killilea of 401 River Street read several comments regarding the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Sam Schillace of 407 Ridge Road – asked the Planning Commission to consider the mine in Farmington 
Township.   
 
Holly Walsh of 405 Ridge Road – voiced concerns about high density residential in her area. Apartment 
buildings are fine, but not 40 units.   
 
Discussion and possible action re:  
 
Ridge Road Concept Development by CE Wurzer 
Swanberg explained the proposed development and staff has reviewed and given their recommendations 
to the developer. Justin Wurzer answered questions about the development.  The project includes 6 
additional 12 plexes.  There is a potential for use of TID funds for the road and infrastructure.  Motion 
by Sine to recommend the Village board enter into discussions with CE Wurzer for a purchase and 
development agreement for PID#165-00582-0300, seconded by Kruse.    
   Motion passed 5-0 O’Connell Abstained 
Easement off 8th Ave – Shane Twohy 
Shane Twohy explained that he owns 892 Maple Drive and has a house on that lot. He also owns the lot 
behind 892 Maple Drive and has access to it thru an easement on Schilberg Park property.  He would 
like to improve access in anticipation of development.  Shane presented an old plat showing an easement 
for East 8th Avenue that the Village has no intention of building.  Other property owners abutting this 8th 
Street easement have personal items located on village property. Shane has checked into having a gravel 

59 of 148



 

 

road constructed to his property, which would need to be engineered so it doesn’t affect the drainage in 
that area.  The Planning Commission directed Devin to locate the survey pins or property perimeter for 
the 8th Avenue easement.   
 
Cemetery Survey and Discussion 
Ron Jasperson, President of Mount Hope Cemetery Association, read a letter to the Commission.  The 
recent survey found that .33 acres of cemetery property is being used by the Village and they would like 
to sell it to us. The surveyor has not set the pins so lines could be adjusted.  The survey company will 
set the pins when we decide the final lines.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Lutz to recommend Village 
Board enter negotiations with Mount Hope Cemetery Association to purchase .33 acres the Village is 
currently using, seconded by Bullard.     Motion passed 5-0 Lutz abstained  
 
Future Agenda Items  
O’Connell requested to have Impact Fees and needs assessment on the September agenda. These would 
be effective January 1, 2025. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
 
Minutes Respectfully submitted by Tanya Batchelor, Village Treasurer 

60 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 19:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

1,912.91MTA MTA-MY TAX ACCOUNT8/14/2024

1,865.74MTA MTA-MY TAX ACCOUNT8/28/2024

303.4166996 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES8/14/2024

55.5666997 ANDREW BACH8/14/2024

951.7266998 BADGER STATE INC.8/14/2024

1,023.6866999 BAKER & TAYLOR8/14/2024

409.4367000 BILL'S ACE HARDWARE8/14/2024

122.2867001 BOYDS OUTDOOR POWER8/14/2024

652.1267002 CAPITAL ONE TRADE CREDIT8/14/2024

80.4067003 CARIE KRENTZ8/14/2024

433.3167004 CINTAS8/14/2024

1,392.0067005 COMMERCIAL TESTING LAB.8/14/2024

25.0067006 COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS, LTD8/14/2024

698.9367007 CORE & MAIN LP8/14/2024

26.0167008 DICK'S FRESH MARKET8/14/2024

46.9867009 DIGGERS HOTLINE8/14/2024

2,000.0067010 EMC INS CO - SUBROGATION BILLING8/14/2024

12,304.4767011 EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES8/14/2024

56.5567012 FEDERATED CO-OPS, INC.8/14/2024

126.5067013 GUARDIAN PEST SOLUTIONS, INC.8/14/2024

18,604.8067014 HAWKINS INC8/14/2024

4,600.0067015 INDIANHEAD GLASS INC8/14/2024

147.6467016 JENNIFER GILLER8/14/2024

30.0067017 JENNIFER L. ROYTEK8/14/2024

207.2267018 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL8/14/2024

3,075.0067019 LAKEFRONT LAWN & DOCK SERVICES8/14/2024

5,000.0067020 LAKEHOME PROPERTY MANAGEMENT8/14/2024

249.7967021 LAKELAND COMMUNICATIONS8/14/2024

34.9567022 LE PHILLIPS MEMORIAL LIBRARY8/14/2024

1,012.5667023 MIDWEST ONE - VISA8/14/2024

10,968.9467024 MIDWESTONE8/14/2024

378.0067025 MINNESOTA PETROLEUM SERVICE8/14/2024

50.0067026 NATIONWIDE TRUST COMPANY, FSB8/14/2024

61 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 29:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

113.1567027 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS8/14/2024

59.9467028 PDI TECHNOLOGIES8/14/2024

502.2567029 PITNEY BOWES INC.8/14/2024

1,950.0067030 PRO-GREEN CLEANING & JANITORIAL8/14/2024

180.0067031 RELIANCE ELECTRIC MOTORS8/14/2024

100.0067032 RODLI, BESKAR, NEUHAUS, MURRAY, & PLETCHER8/14/2024

125.0067033 STATE OF WI - DNR8/14/2024

50.0067034 TANNER REBHAN8/14/2024

155.5967035 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST8/14/2024

125.0067036 TMS ENTERPRISES8/14/2024

9,900.0067037 TRI STATE BOBCAT8/14/2024

235.7667038 VERIZON8/14/2024

133.5067039 WI PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION8/14/2024

54.5967040 WI SCTF8/14/2024

29.0067041 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE8/14/2024

50.0067042 WILD RIVERS CONSERVANCY8/14/2024

13,257.2267043 XCEL ENERGY8/14/2024

520.7467044 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES8/21/2024

41.1567045 COMMAND CENTRAL8/21/2024

6,915.5067046 MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES8/21/2024

233.8067047 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS8/21/2024

80.0067048 OSCEOLA STOP8/21/2024

165.3967049 PETTY CASH-LIBRARY8/21/2024

1,950.0067050 PRO-GREEN CLEANING & JANITORIAL8/21/2024

1,662.7167051 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION8/21/2024

629.0067052 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 6628/21/2024

567.7767053 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA8/21/2024

247.3667054 AFLAC8/28/2024

1,513.0067055 BAKKE NORMAN. S.C.8/28/2024

115.0067056 BARBARA ARONSON8/28/2024

70.0067057 CAROL OTTO8/28/2024

70.0067058 CHERYL ANDERSON-HUSTAD8/28/2024

150.0067059 DARLENE BLAIR8/28/2024

62 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 39:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

170.0067060 DEBRA ROSE8/28/2024

503.1267061 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF WISCONSIN8/28/2024

519.5567062 EO JOHNSON COMPANY INC8/28/2024

30.0067063 JENNIFER L. ROYTEK8/28/2024

80.0067064 KYLE WEAVER8/28/2024

80.0067065 LINDA COX8/28/2024

105.0067066 LORI GETSCHEL8/28/2024

24,500.0067067 MINOCQUA GRADING8/28/2024

75.5067068 POLK COUNTY CLERK8/28/2024

1,797.5067069 RATWIK, ROSZAK & MALONEY, P.A.8/28/2024

70.0067070 ROGER ALLRICH8/28/2024

286.3867071 SIGN-XPRESS, LLC8/28/2024

512.8067072 ST CROIX FALLS8/28/2024

26,703.5367073 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC8/28/2024

1,024.0067074 SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION8/28/2024

50.0067075 TANNER REBHAN8/28/2024

54.5967076 WI SCTF8/28/2024

70.0067077 WILLIAM BLAIR8/28/2024

1,993.0067078 ACTION RADIO & COMMUNICATIONS, INC.9/04/2024

352.2967079 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES9/04/2024

1,159.0067080 AMERICAN TEST CENTER9/04/2024

2,640.0067081 APPRAISAL SERVICES9/04/2024

3,091.6067082 AUTOMATIC SYSTEMS CO9/04/2024

405.4167083 CAPITAL ONE TRADE CREDIT9/04/2024

9,660.0067084 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN LLP9/04/2024

25.0067085 COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS, LTD9/04/2024

5,507.2467086 CORE & MAIN LP9/04/2024

1,450.0067087 CYCLONE FENCE9/04/2024

69.4867088 DAREL HALL9/04/2024

2,292.8367089 HAWKINS INC9/04/2024

1,044.1967090 HD SUPPLY9/04/2024

2,011.5167091 KWIK TRIP9/04/2024

762.1667092 LAKELAND COMMUNICATIONS9/04/2024

63 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 49:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

359.6367093 MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT INC.9/04/2024

2,285.0267094 MIDWEST ONE - VISA9/04/2024

688.4067095 NORTH 40 RESOURCES9/04/2024

6,736.0067096 NORTHWESTERN POWER EQUIPMENT CO., INC.9/04/2024

770.0067097 RIDGELINE UTILITY CO, LLC9/04/2024

2,750.0067098 SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON9/04/2024

5,812.9067099 THE BITWORKS INC.9/04/2024

155.5967100 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST9/04/2024

366.1967101 WE ENERGIES9/04/2024

1,965.0067102 WEST WISCONSIN INSPECTION AGENCY, LLC9/04/2024

133.5067103 WI PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION9/04/2024

10,675.46EFTPS EFTPS8/14/2024

10,583.95EFTPS EFTPS8/28/2024

12,934.86WRS-ETF WRS-EFT8/28/2024

92.28COL LIFE COLONIAL LIFE8/28/2024

2,442.50V8142401 BACH, ANDREW8/14/2024

1,560.72V8142402 BATCHELOR, TANYA8/14/2024

1,912.29V8142403 CARUSO, RICHARD T.8/14/2024

368.81V8142404 CHAPMAN, HUNTER8/14/2024

538.39V8142405 FELDTMOSE, MARIE K.8/14/2024

1,357.75V8142406 GILLER, JENNIFER8/14/2024

468.95V8142407 HOVERMAN, RICHARD D.8/14/2024

867.82V8142408 JACOBS, MICHELLE8/14/2024

1,799.93V8142409 KENNY, RYAN8/14/2024

1,635.52V8142410 KRENTZ, CARIE8/14/2024

502.02V8142411 KRENTZ, DEVON8/14/2024

290.90V8142412 LEHMAN, JENNIFER T.8/14/2024

1,758.99V8142413 MALLIN, MICHAEL8/14/2024

1,571.81V8142414 MILLER, ANNE8/14/2024

437.04V8142415 PARO, CORA8/14/2024

1,772.53V8142416 REBHAN, TANNER8/14/2024

1,361.34V8142417 ROYTEK, JENNIFER L.8/14/2024

726.11V8142418 ROYTEK, RYAN8/14/2024

64 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 59:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

1,593.10V8142419 SCHILL, JUSTIN8/14/2024

2,864.05V8142420 SWANBERG, DEVIN8/14/2024

683.39V8142421 TRACY, DAWN8/14/2024

1,868.33V8142422 TRACY, RALPH E.8/14/2024

1,857.03V8142423 TREMBLAY, MATTHEW8/14/2024

1,800.22V8142424 WATERS, TODD8/14/2024

2,179.83V8282401 BACH, ANDREW8/28/2024

1,699.21V8282402 BATCHELOR, TANYA8/28/2024

2,091.59V8282403 CARUSO, RICHARD T.8/28/2024

402.10V8282404 CHAPMAN, HUNTER8/28/2024

643.07V8282405 FELDTMOSE, MARIE K.8/28/2024

1,415.75V8282406 GILLER, JENNIFER8/28/2024

522.15V8282407 HOVERMAN, RICHARD D.8/28/2024

669.39V8282408 JACOBS, MICHELLE8/28/2024

1,604.28V8282409 KENNY, RYAN8/28/2024

1,700.52V8282410 KRENTZ, CARIE8/28/2024

725.39V8282411 KRENTZ, DEVON8/28/2024

616.00V8282412 KRENTZ, KRISTOPHER8/28/2024

263.20V8282413 LEHMAN, JENNIFER T.8/28/2024

1,728.62V8282414 MALLIN, MICHAEL8/28/2024

1,275.85V8282415 MILLER, ANNE8/28/2024

149.61V8282416 PARO, CORA8/28/2024

1,813.73V8282417 REBHAN, TANNER8/28/2024

1,361.34V8282418 ROYTEK, JENNIFER L.8/28/2024

435.96V8282419 ROYTEK, RYAN8/28/2024

1,662.10V8282420 SCHILL, JUSTIN8/28/2024

2,864.05V8282421 SWANBERG, DEVIN8/28/2024

751.25V8282422 TRACY, DAWN8/28/2024

1,937.33V8282423 TRACY, RALPH E.8/28/2024

2,001.14V8282424 TREMBLAY, MATTHEW8/28/2024

1,976.82V8282425 WATERS, TODD8/28/2024

660.59GREAT WEST GREAT WEST8/14/2024

660.23GREAT WEST GREAT WEST8/28/2024

65 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 69:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

1,947.21HEALTHPTNRS HEALTH PARTNERS INSURANCE8/12/2024

24,115.00CENTRALSTATS CENTRAL STATES H&W FUND8/29/2024

348,115.63Grand Total

66 of 148



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 79:57 AM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:

Thru Account:Thru: 9/06/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Amount

From Account:8/08/2024

9/06/2024 Page:

189,650.86Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL FUND

20,453.16Total Expenditure from Fund # 240 - LIBRARY FUND

1,342.33Total Expenditure from Fund # 250 - AIRPORT

3,309.15Total Expenditure from Fund # 275 - OSCEOLA MUNICIPAL COURT

10,968.94Total Expenditure from Fund # 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND

44,065.50Total Expenditure from Fund # 400 - GENERAL CAPITAL FUND

41,705.78Total Expenditure from Fund # 610 - WATER UTILITY

36,619.91Total Expenditure from Fund # 620 - SEWER UTILITY

348,115.63Total Expenditure from all Funds

67 of 148



Village of Osceola - Monthly Budget Report

Year to Date for Month Ending
8/31/2024

2024 2024 Variance

Village of Osceola Actuals @ Budget (Over)/Under Percentage

Account Number 8/31/2024 Budget

Revenue
100-00-41110-000-000 Levy for General Fund 0 668,763 (668,763) 0%

100-00-41140-000-000 Mobile Home Taxes 16,004 20,000 (3,996) 80%

100-00-41310-000-000 Taxes from Utility 0 103,070 (103,070) 0%

100-00-41320-000-000 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 8,087 4,721 3,366 171%

100-00-41800-000-000 Interest / Penalty on Taxes 0 0 0 0%

100-00-41900-000-000 Other Taxes 0 1,500 (1,500) 0%

    Total Taxes 24,092 798,054 (773,962)

100-00-42300-000-000 Special Assessment Revenue 0 1,700 (1,700) 1,700

100-00-43410-000-000    WI State Shared Revenue 60,251 401,675 (341,424) 15%

100-00-43415-000-000    Expenditure Restraint 0 0 0  

100-00-46220-000-000    Fire Insurance Fee 13,866 12,589 1,277 110%

100-00-43430-000-000    Exempt Computer Aid 13,503 13,503 0 100%

100-00-43531-000-000    WI State Transportation Aid Revenue 113,389 151,185 (37,796) 75%

100-00-43440-000-000    Personal Property Aid 8,571 8,571 0 100%

100-00-43534-000-000    LRIP Grant 0 0 0 0

100-00-43535-000-000    Other Federal Grant - Police 3,715 250 3,465 250

100-00-43690-000-000 Other State Grant 0 0 0 0

   Intergovernmental Revenues 213,296 587,773 (374,477)

Licenses and Permits

100-00-44100-000-000 Liquor Licenses 0 0 0  

100-00-44200-000-000 All non-liquor licenses 3,385 4,000 (615) 85%

100-00-44400-000-000 Planning and Zoning Fees 940 1,000 (60) 94%

100-00-44300-000-000 Building Permits 43,244 65,000 (21,756) 67%

100-00-44405-000-000 Escrow - Engineering Review 0 15,000 (15,000) 0%

100-00-44900-000-000 Cable Franchise Fees 6,581 15,000 (8,419) 44%

100-00-46311-000-000 Street Opening Permits 1,600 1,250 350 128%

100-00-46330-000-000 Downtown Parking Permits 51 1,000 (949) 5%

    Licenses and Permits 55,802 102,250 (46,448)

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties

100-00-45100-000-000 Court Fines Revenue 13,450 24,200 (10,750) 56%

100-00-45110-000-000 Parking Fines 0 100 (100) 0%

    Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 13,450 24,300 (10,850)

Public Charges for Service 

100-00-44102-000-000 Dog Licenses 738 900 (162) 82%

100-00-46211-000-000 Charges for Public Service - Police 476 1,000 (524) 48%

Other - COPS Grant 0 0 0  

Minor Revenues 0 0 0  

Other Revenue 0 0 0  

100-00-46100-000-000 Admin Assess Search 800 1,500 (700) 53%

100-00-44401-000-000 Zoning Compliance Letters 0 250 (250) 0%

100-00-47491-000-000 Public Fire Protection 0 239,454 (239,454) 0%

100-00-46850-000-000 RDA Administrative Fee 0 41,000 (41,000) 0%

100-00-46222-000-000 Fire Revenue from Townships 96,952 193,903 (96,952) 50%

   Public Charges for Service 98,965 478,007 (379,042)
0 0 0 0

Misc General Revenue

100-00-48100-000-000 Interest Income 0 3,500 (3,500) 0%

100-00-48309-000-000 Sale of Property 324,761

100-00-48310-000-000 Sale of Assets 8,000 0 8,000 0%

100-00-48440-000-000 Recoveries and Reimbursements 0 0 0  

100-00-48401-000-000 Recoveries and Reimbursements 20,909 7,500 13,409 279%

100-00-48500-000-000 Donations 15,000 16,000 (1,000) 0%

68 of 148



Village of Osceola - Monthly Budget Report

Year to Date for Month Ending
8/31/2024

2024 2024 Variance

Village of Osceola Actuals @ Budget (Over)/Under Percentage

Account Number 8/31/2024 Budget

100-00-48900-000-000 Misc. Revenues 0 2,000 (2,000) 0%

100-00-48990-000-000 Refund Prior Year Expense 0 0 0 0

   Misc. General Revenue 368,670 29,000 14,909

Other Financing Sources

100-00-49280-000-000    Transfer In -Room Tax Fund 0 5,000 (5,000) 0%

100-00-49600-000-000    Transfer In - Water Fund 0 146,155 (146,155) 0%

100-00-49620-000-000    Transfer In - Sewer Fund 0 45,820 (45,820) 0%

Borrow for Maintenance Items

Subtotal Other Financing Sources 0 196,975 (196,975)

   TOTAL REVENUE 774,274 2,216,359 (1,766,846) 35%

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES -SUMMARY

Legislative 37,935 100,965 (63,030) 38%

Administration 323,949 253,835 70,114 128%

353,934 791,465 (437,531) 45%

Fire 121,019 204,200 (83,181) 59%

Street 85,316 251,440 (166,125) 34%

Street Lights 25,470 44,180 (19,668) 58%

Storm Water 11,455 16,255 (3,835) 70%

Street Signs 5,523 14,520 (8,997) 38%

Garage and Maintenance 85,258 78,995 13,549 108%

Sanitation 10,921 9,425 1,496 116%

Parks 92,700 132,440 (39,740) 70%

Economic Development 12,139 16,573 (4,434) 73%

General Fund Transfers 186,500 179,000 (179,000) 104%

100-00-52210-226-000 Public Fire Protection (Hydrants)* 0 239,454 (239,454) 0%

100-00-52300-000-000 Ambulance* 42,360 42,360 0 100%

100-00-52400-215-000 Building Inspection* 37,285 40,000 (2,715) 93%

100-00-51930-511-000 Insurance * 2,500 5,000 (2,500) 50%

Insurance Highway* 2,500 0 2,500  

100-00-51510-215-000 Auditor 6,588 20,000 (13,413) 33%

100-00-51530-215-000 Assessor 10,560 13,200 (2,640) 80%

100-00-51530-390-000 Assessor Manufacturing 0 2,400 (2,400) 0%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,453,910 2,455,707 (1,181,004) 59%

      REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (679,636) (239,348) (585,842)  

69 of 148



 
Memo 

To:    Wilberg Memorial Library Board of Trustees 

From:  Anne Miller, Library Director 

CC:     Village Board of Osceola 

Date:   September 2024 

  

DIRECTOR/ADMINISTRATION 

The library system will be transitioning to a new email system for sending out holds and 

overdue notices, and I volunteered to be one of the test libraries. I spent several days 

during the month watching training videos and creating the notices which we started 

using in September.  

  

MATERIALS CIRCULATION 

July 2024, Total Items Circulated:  4438 

Public Computer Uses for July 2024:  94 

eBook Checkouts for July 2024:  1390 

New Patrons in July 2024:  27 

 

COLLECTIONS 

The library added 138 new items to our shelves during the month of July.  

 

EVENTS & ACTIVITIES 

We wrapped up our Summer Learning Program in August. This summer we had 260 

children aged 0-18 registered for our program, and they turned in reading records that 

totaled 2625 hours of reading. We held a program kick-off event, a total of seven Thursday 

afternoon events in June and July, a young adult program, and an End of Summer 

Learning Program Party in August for a grand total of 517 attendees at all the programs.  

 

Storytime met the first two weeks of August, with the last storytime of the month held at 

the OMC Playdate, and then took a break the last two weeks of the month. Both adult 

book discussions met in August, and the book bike was out and about visiting both the 

Evergreen and Millside Apartments and the Farmer’s Market. Lunch with a Librarian met 

twice during August, with the second meeting taking place during Trustee Training Week, 

70 of 148



 
where we watched the training webinar titled “Everything You Want to Know About Book 

Challenges...and a Bit You Probably Don't” by Tasslyn Magnusson who is a Prescott 

Public Library Trustee 

 

FACILITIES & STAFF 

The computer replacement plan began during August replacing two of the public 

computers, one adult and one teen computer, and three staff computers. Three of the 

computers that were replaced we then moved to replace the even older self-check 

computer and the two public catalog computers. We hope to be able to continue a regular 

schedule of replacing a few computers every year.  

 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

September 16 – Lunch with a Librarian 

September 17 & 24 – Storytime 

September 18 – Book Bike to Millside Apartments 

September 19 – LEGO Club 

September 25 – WMPL Book Discussion 

September 26 – Book Bike to Evergreen Apartments 

 

Osceola Circulation Statistics July 2024 

 

71 of 148



 
 

 

 

  

72 of 148



 

 

73 of 148



74 of 148



                                           Memo 

Page | 1  

 

To: President Lutz and Village Board Members  

From: Todd Waters (Public Works Coordinator)  

CC: Carie Krentz 

Date: September 10, 2024  

Re: DPW August Board Update  

Streets: 
 Over 30 sign posts were repaired and painted.  
 Dredging of Mill Pond dam. Roughly 320 cubic yards of debris was removed from the pond.  
 7 miles of ditch mowing throughout the Village of Osceola occurred in August.  
 Continued the application of asphalt to rough streets.  
 95% of the Village had been swept by our street sweeper. Wind and rain brought down an abundance of leaves, 

small sticks and debris which all had to be swept again.  
 The departments lift was repaired and went straight to work fixing banners, hanging a banner for the special 

event, and fixing flags.  
 A complete and thorough cleaning of lots and the downtown was completed in August multiple times in 

preparation for painted streets and large events. 
Parks: 

 Pesticide spray was applied to adolescent trees and a continued watch for infestation occurred in August. 
 Cascade Falls stairs continued to be monitored and light debris removal from the stairs occurs after each rain.  
 Building exterior pressure washing and painting occurred in August.  
 An excellent path was installed in and around Mill Pond, linking to our public parking lot behind Dick’s Fresh 

Market.  
 
 

Building Maintenance: 
 HVAC system update. RTU has been up and down since June. The unit was reviewed by Badger State June 21, 

August 1, August 9, and August 14. Problems persisted and the root of the issue was not resolved. Contacted 
another company who did an abundance of troubleshooting on the unit which resulted in discovering a bad oil 
pressure sensor. Part is on order and will be installed when it arrives.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

75 of 148



                                           Memo 

Page | 1  

 

    To: President Lutz and Village Board Members  

From: Rick Caruso, Utilities Coordinator 

CC: Carie Krentz  

Date:      September 10, 2024 

Re: Utility Department September Board Update  

Water Utility: 
 

 Water produced in August totaled 6.957 million gallons. 
 Annual valve maintenance is underway requiring operators to check, clean, and operate main line valves. In 

addition, we are working towards an ArcGis app that would assist in tracking valve maintenance in real time, 
allowing one operator to pick up where another left off, and generate annual reports as required by the DNR.  

 Improvements were made to the Bluff Tower fence to increase security by adding additional fencing materials.  
 I have been working with Verizon and KLM on tower upgrades for additional antennas on the County Road M 

tower. Their upgrades include a new welded handrail to support the new antennas and are subject to review by 
our tower engineers KLM. Currently there is no timeframe proposed for the upgrade. 

 Operators oversaw the abandonment of the water and sewer at the 405 4th Ave house. An additional unused 
corporation tap was encountered and was abandoned at the same time.  

 
 
Sewer Utility:  
 

 Wastewater treated in August totaled 8.127 million gallons. 
 We have been working with one of the businesses in the industrial park regarding allowed waste code found in 

section 201. The business has been very open with us to ensure that their waste streams are allowed by Village 
code and have performed sampling, analysis, and process chemical changes to ensure they are in compliance. 
We will be continuously working with them over the next few months assisting with the rest of their processes.  

 We hosted a site visit and tour to SEH engineers working on our facility plan. In my opinion a physical visit to 
these sites is crucial to an understanding of the current and future challenges of the wastewater facility.  

 Operators are continuing to GIS map with a goal of gathering all data points before it snows. Although this is a 
push, we see so much value in the mapping we have completed, we are determined to see this project to 
completion.  

 A pump failure was found at the River Street lift station and was determined to be caused by a worn pump. 
Although we were able to get the pump operational again, the pump will be replaced prior to winter.  

 

76 of 148



Municipality Permits Report
8/1/2024 to 8/31/2024

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA
Total
Value

Total
Fees

Total
Fines

VOS24-54

Cortney Fisher

111 CASCADE ST N SUMP SYSTEM

$4,000.00 $208.80165-00098-0000

VOS24-55

 BENCK MECHANICAL INC | BENCK MECHANICAL INC, | 6904

1029 OAK RIDGE DR WALK IN COOLER/FREEZER

$96,500.00 $600.00165-00329-0000

VOS24-56

CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION | CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION | N/A

913 CASCADE ST N RE-ROOF

$26,755.59 $90.00165-00333-0000

VOS24-57

MINOQUA GRADING

405 4TH AVE RAZE

$23,000.00 $125.00165-00425-0000

VOS24-58

COVER IT ALL LLC | COVER IT ALL LLC | 062100748

715 CASCADE ST N RE-ROOF

$20,494.00 $90.00165-00382-0000

VOS24-59

TOM JOHNSON ROWBOUGH PARTNER

200 SEMINOLE AVE LOT 16 Mobile Home Lot 16

$85,000.00 $480.00165-00589-0000

VOS24-60

CELESTE SPOONER JOHN MAURER

181 GATEWAY PKWY SHED

$5,000.00 $90.00165-00844-0056

VOS24-61

Aaron Lewicki

913 MARTYS WAY WINDOW REPLACEMENT

$12,244.00 $273.60165-00685-0000

$272,993.598

$1,957.40

Alteration=3
Re-roof=2
Raze=1
Move=1
Shed=1

Permit Distribution Total Permits Total Value

Total Fees
Fines

Impact
Totals

$305.40Admin Plan Review
State Permit Seal$1,652.00Inspection House Number

Other

77 of 148



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2024 to 8/31/2024

VOS24-55

 BENCK MECHANICAL INC | BENCK MECHANICAL INC, | 6904

1029 OAK RIDGE DR WALK IN COOLER/FREEZER

$96,500.00 $600.00165-00329-0000

VOS24-56

CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION | CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION | N/A

913 CASCADE ST N RE-ROOF

$26,755.59 $90.00165-00333-0000

VOS24-57

MINOQUA GRADING

405 4TH AVE RAZE

$23,000.00 $125.00165-00425-0000

VOS24-58

COVER IT ALL LLC | COVER IT ALL LLC | 062100748

715 CASCADE ST N RE-ROOF

$20,494.00 $90.00165-00382-0000

VOS24-59

TOM JOHNSON ROWBOUGH PARTNER

200 SEMINOLE AVE LOT 16 Mobile Home Lot 16

$85,000.00 $480.00165-00589-0000

VOS24-60

CELESTE SPOONER JOHN MAURER

181 GATEWAY PKWY SHED

$5,000.00 $90.00165-00844-0056

VOS24-61

Aaron Lewicki

913 MARTYS WAY WINDOW REPLACEMENT

$12,244.00 $273.60165-00685-0000

$9,583,118.3162

$36,072.72

Electrical=7
Alteration=18
Acc. Building=2
HVAC=2
New Home=6
New Commercial=3
Re-roof=7
Fence=6
Other=6
Deck=1
Siding=2
Move=2
Shed=2
Raze=1

Permit Distribution Total Permits Total Value

Total Fees
Fines

Impact
Totals

$3,659.38Admin $801.82Plan Review
$210.00State Permit Seal$31,401.52Inspection House Number

Other

78 of 148



Chamber of Commerce and Main Street Update

Main Street Update

Construction finished on Phase 1 of the Osceola Skatepark. It is incredible to see all of the people

discovering and re-engaging with Oakey Park. Having spent 5 hours there over the recent labor day

weekend and talking with individuals that were visiting from Andover, MN and Duluth, MN. This new gift

to the Village of Osceola is something we should all be proud of. Thank you.

The Secret Closet, located at 205 North Cascade Street, has closed. We want to thank them for being a

part of Downtown Osceola.

Health-Esteem/Minniesconnie Homes, previously located at 113 N Cascade St. is moving into the old

Secret Closet space.

The Osceola Business Improvement District made a $1,000 donation to the Grow Osceola group to help

them in their Fall beautification efforts in Downtown Osceola.

Travel Wisconsin has started their Fall Marketing Campaign called “Here’s To Being Here”

highlighting Fall adventures all across the state of Wisconsin. They have a video series and it

encourages visitors to start in the St. Croix Valley and the video features Trollhaugen and the

79 of 148



Wilke Glen and Cascade Falls.

List of articles and features on TravelWisconsin.com featuring Osceola

● 5 Scenic Fall Train Rides in Wisconsin

-https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/hidden-gems/article/tours/five-scenic-fall-trai

n-rides-in-wisconsin

● 10 Scenic Waterfalls in Wisconsin -

https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/natural-attractions-and-parks/top-ten-scenic-

waterfalls-in-wisconsin

● Here’s To Being Here - St. Croix Valley -

https://www.travelwisconsin.com/heres-to-being-here-travel-series/st-croix-valley

● Here’s to Being Here: Wilke Glen and Cascade Falls 30 second spot -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wPc0Lu2gz9k&t=4s

Save the date - the Wisconsin Main Street Award Winning Doe-On-The-Go is coming back -

November 22 and 23, 2024.

Respectfully submitted,

Wyatt Yager

80 of 148

https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/hidden-gems/article/tours/five-scenic-fall-train-rides-in-wisconsin
https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/hidden-gems/article/tours/five-scenic-fall-train-rides-in-wisconsin
https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/natural-attractions-and-parks/top-ten-scenic-waterfalls-in-wisconsin
https://www.travelwisconsin.com/article/natural-attractions-and-parks/top-ten-scenic-waterfalls-in-wisconsin
https://www.travelwisconsin.com/heres-to-being-here-travel-series/st-croix-valley
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wPc0Lu2gz9k&t=4s


                                             Memo 

1 

 

To: Village Board 

From: Carie Krentz, Village Clerk 

CC:   Devin Swanberg, Village Administrator 

Date: August 22, 2024 

Re: Appointment of additional 2024-2025 Poll Workers 

 

 

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
To best serve the public during the November 5, 2024 Presidential election cycle, Village staff would 
like to appoint three additional poll workers. I have received interest to from the following individuals 
to serve in this capacity. The list below have been reviewed and no anomalies are present. 
 
2024-2025 POLL WORKER APPOINTMENTS: 

 
1. Rut Kessel 
2. Elaine Fredrickson 
3. Frances Kerber 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

 

Staff recommends approval of all appointments. 

81 of 148



  Memo                                            

Page | 1  

 

To: President Lutz and Village Board Members  

From: Todd Waters, Public Works Coordinator 

CC: Carie Krentz  

Date: September 10, 2024 

Re: Approve Phase 1 of Oakey Park Parking Lot  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Background 
Oakey Park continues to expand with recreational opportunities and large events. With growth and expansion, the 
Public Works Department is seeking to connect 4th Ave to 6th Ave with a 63-space parking lot. The overall dimension 
is 310 feet in length and 60 feet wide. This will not only provide additional parking to Oakey Park but will also 
provide desperately needed parking space within a short, direct connection to our Village Downtown with existing 
pedestrian access. It will also provide a space in the winter to install snow from Public Works downtown snow 
removal program.  
 

BID Number Company Total  
1 J&S General Contracting  $26,540.00 
2 Paragon Excavating $21,360.00 

 
 
 
First phase will consist of a gravel base prepped and ready for asphalt in 2025. Parks Impact fees accumulated since 
2018 are at roughly $61,000.00 and a portion must be utilized in 2024 as we are now in our 7th year. After presenting 
potential options for spending these funds to the Public Works Committee, the Committee voted unanimously for 
this project and also aligns with our Parks Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan.  
 
 
Action(s) Requested 
Action 1: At this time staff is respectfully requesting that the Village Board approve the Parks Impact Fee 
expenditure for the 1st phase of the construction of this parking lot.  

 
Attachment(s) 

 
1. RFQ Documentation 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
Village Staff 
Village Staff recommend approval  
Public Works Committee approval  

82 of 148



83 of 148



84 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Village Board   

From: Devin Swanberg Village Administrator  

CC: Village Board  

Date: September 6th, 2024 

Re: Impact Fees   

The planning commission recommended the approval of the impact fees for 2025 with a 
maximum payment of $6000. This is a discussion item for the board meeting as there still needs 
to be a public hearing before adopting. The following pages are the impact fees as they were 
presented at the planning commission meeting with a comparison of other municipalities impact 
fees. No action is requested currently. 

 

 

85 of 148



 
 
VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA, WI  
 
NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND IMPACT FEE UPDATE 
      

August 28, 2024 

Prepared for: 
Village of Osceola, WI 

Prepared by: 
Angela Popenhagen P.E., Senior Project 
Manager 

Project Number: 
193810004 

 
 

86 of 148



  

The conclusions in the Report titled “Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update” are Stantec’s 

professional opinion, as of the time of the Report, and concerning the scope described in the Report. The 

opinions in the document are based on conditions and information existing at the time the scope of work 

was conducted and do not take into account any subsequent changes. The Report relates solely to the 

specific project for which Stantec was retained and the stated purpose for which the Report was 

prepared. The Report is not to be used or relied on for any variation or extension of the project, or for any 

other project or purpose, and any unauthorized use or reliance is at the recipient’s own risk. 

Stantec has assumed all information received from Village of Osceola, WI (the “Client”) and third parties 

in the preparation of the Report to be correct. While Stantec has exercised a customary level of judgment 

or due diligence in the use of such information, Stantec assumes no responsibility for the consequences 

of any error or omission contained therein. 

This Report is intended solely for use by the Client in accordance with Stantec’s contract with the Client. 

While the Report may be provided by the Client to applicable authorities having jurisdiction and to other 

third parties in connection with the project, Stantec disclaims any legal duty based upon warranty, 

reliance or any other theory to any third party, and will not be liable to such third party for any damages or 

losses of any kind that may result. 

Prepared by: 
 

 

Signature 

 

Angela Popenhagen, P.E. 

 

Printed Name 

Reviewed by: 
 

 

Signature 

 

 

 

Printed Name 

Approved by: 
 

 

Signature 

 

 

 

Printed Name 

87 of 148



 Project Number: 193810004 iii
 

Table of Contents 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................... V 

1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Background ................................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3 Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

2 POPULATION AND PROJECTED GROWTH ANALYSIS ........................................... 4 
2.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 4 

3 WATER SYSTEM NEEDS ASSESSMENT ................................................................... 7 
3.1 Inventory of Existing Facilities ....................................................................................................... 7 
3.2 Water Impact Fee Calculation ....................................................................................................... 7 

4 SEWER SYSTEM NEEDS ASSESSMENT ................................................................... 9 
4.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions .................................................................................................... 9 
4.2 Sewer Connection Fee Calculation ............................................................................................... 9 

5 LIBRARY NEEDS ASSESSMENT.............................................................................. 11 
5.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future Needs ........................................... 11 
5.2 Library Impact Fee ....................................................................................................................... 11 

6 PUBLIC WORKS NEEDS ASSESSMENT .................................................................. 12 
6.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future Needs ........................................... 12 
6.2 Public Works Impact Fee............................................................................................................. 12 

7 ROADWAY NEEDS ASSESSMENT ........................................................................... 14 
7.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future Needs ........................................... 14 
7.2 Roadway Impact Fee ................................................................................................................... 14 

8 PARKS AND RECREATION NEEDS ASSESSMENT ................................................ 17 
8.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future Needs ........................................... 17 
8.2 Parks and Recreation Impact Fee ............................................................................................... 18 

9 RECOMMENDED FEES AND IMPLEMENTATION .................................................... 19 
9.1 Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 19 
9.2 Recommended Impact Fee Schedule ......................................................................................... 19 
9.3 Impact on the Availability of Affordable Housing ......................................................................... 20 
9.4 Enacting the Impact Fee Ordinance ............................................................................................ 21 
9.5 Imposition and Collection of Fees ............................................................................................... 21 
9.6 Managing Impact Fees ................................................................................................................ 22 
9.7 Periodic Review ........................................................................................................................... 23 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1: Impact Fees - Existing vs. Recommended ..................................................................................... v 
Table 2: Comparison of Projected vs. Actual Growth ................................................................................... 4 
Table 3: % Change in Population ................................................................................................................. 5 
Table 4: Population & Growth Analysis ......................................................................................................... 5 
Table 5: Calculation of Water System Impact Fee ....................................................................................... 7 
Table 6: Schedule of Recommended Fees ................................................................................................... 8 
Table 7: Calculation of Sanitary System Impact Fee .................................................................................... 9 
Table 8: Schedule of Recommended Fees ................................................................................................. 10 
Table 9:Calculation of Road Impact Fee ..................................................................................................... 15 
Table 10:Roadway Impact Fee ................................................................................................................... 15 
Table 11:Commercial / Industrial Road Improvement Impact Fee ............................................................. 16 
Table 12:Acreage of All Parks Within the Village........................................................................................ 17 
Table 13: Parks and Recreation Impact Fee .............................................................................................. 18 

88 of 148



 Project Number: 193810004 iv
 

Table 14:  Recommended Impact Fees ...................................................................................................... 19 
Table 15: Effect of Impact Fee on Affordable Housing ............................................................................... 20 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: Village of Osceola Population Trends............................................................................................ 5 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
Appendix A: Roadway Expansion Costs ..................................................................................................... 24 
Appendix B: Commercial / Industrial Land Use Traffic Impact …………………….………………………….25 

  

89 of 148



 Project Number: 193810004 v
 

Executive Summary 

The Village of Osceola is currently operating under impact fees calculated in March of 2006.  Since this 

time, there have been amendments and clarifications to the Wisconsin impact fee laws and updated 

population projections. The Village hired Stevens Engineers (now Stantec) to update the needs 

assessment and impact fee to comply with current law and current population and growth projections.  

This data was used to calculate the maximum amount for impact fee rates for the Village.  The Village 

Board, at their discretion, may adopt a lower amount than calculated. 

In the state of Wisconsin, impact fees can be used for the following public facilities: 

• Highways, as defined in s. 340.01 (22),  

• Facilities for collecting and treating sewage,  

• Facilities for collecting and treating storm and surface waters, 

• Facilities for pumping, storing, and distributing water,  

• Parks, Playground and land for athletic fields  

• Solid waste and recycling facilities, 

• Fire protection facilities,  

• Law enforcement facilities 

• Emergency medical facilities, and 

• Libraries.  

This report updates the impact fees to satisfy the requirements of Wisconsin State Statute §66.0617.  The 

calculations properly allocate the capital costs for the facilities between existing development and new 

development and used as the basis for the recommended impact fees. 

Table 1: Impact Fees - Existing vs. Recommended 

** Note: Library, Village Hall, Police Station, Fire Station, Community Center, and Public Works were all 

combined in the previous impact fee schedule as “Municipal Buildings”.  Total impact fee for Municipal 

Buildings was $595. This “Municipal Buildings” category is no longer allowed under Wisconsin State 

Statute and only allows for the categories shown in the table unless noted with “No longer allowed”. 

 Current Impact Fee Recommended Updated Impact Fee 

Water Impact Fee $420 $579 

Sanitary Sewer Impact Fee $1150 $2,857 

Library Impact Fee** $185 $51 

Village Hall** $135 No longer allowed 

Police Station** $120 - 

Fire Station** $50 - 

Community Center** $55 No longer allowed 

Public Works Impact Fee** $50 $483 

Roadway Impact Fee - $3,035 

Parks and Recreation Impact Fee $440 $87 

TOTAL $2,605 $7,092 

90 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Introduction 

 Project Number: 193810004 1
 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Introduction 

Impact fees are financial contributions imposed by communities to pay for capital improvements within the 

community, which are necessary to serve or accommodate new development. State law requires that 

impact fees must bear a rational relationship to the need for new, expanded or improved public facilities. 

This means that impact fees should not be charged to new development if that development is not likely 

to create a demand for a specific type of facility for which an impact fee is imposed. For example, most 

communities that charge an impact fee for libraries do not impose them on non-residential development. 

It also means that the amount of the impact fee should be based on a reasonable estimate of the demand 

that a new development will create for public facilities. For services that serve both residential and non-

residential properties, such as water and sewer service, this requires finding a reasonable basis for 

determining the amount of capital costs of facilities are required for residential versus non-residential 

development. 

State law also dictates that impact fees cannot exceed the proportionate share of the capital costs 

required to serve new development as compared to existing development. Each facility must be analyzed 

to determine the share of the facility that is needed to provide the established service level to the existing 

development versus the excess facility space that is available to serve new development. The same 

service level should be applied to both existing and new development when determining if there is a 

portion of facilities that are needed to provide the desired service level to existing development.   

The Needs Assessment and associated impact fees must meet the following criteria: 

• Maintain a rational relationship to the need for new, expanded or improved public facilities that 

are required to serve land development. 

• Cannot exceed the proportionate share of the capital costs that are required to serve land 

development, as compared to existing uses of land within the municipality. 

• Be based upon actual capital costs or reasonable estimates of capital costs for new, expanded or 

improved public facilities. 

• Be reduced to compensate for other capital costs imposed by the municipality with respect to land 

development to provide or pay for public facilities, including special assessments, special 

charges, land dedications or fees in lieu of land dedications under Ch. 236 or any other items of 

value. 

• Be reduced to compensate for monies received from the federal or state government specifically 

to provide or pay for the public facilities for which the impact fees are imposed. 

• Cannot include amounts necessary to address existing deficiencies in public facilities. 

• Be payable by the developer or the property owner to the municipality in full upon issuance of a 

building permit by the municipality. 

• May be held for 8 years after they are collected, or in the case of impact fees that are collected 

for capital costs related to lift stations or sewage treatment, 10 years from the time collected plus 

3 years longer if the municipality finds due to extenuating circumstances or hardship a longer time 

to hold the impact fees is needed. 

91 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Introduction 

 Project Number: 193810004 2
 

In the state of Wisconsin, impact fees can be used for the following public facilities: 

• Highways, as defined in s. 340.01 (22),  

• Facilities for collecting and treating sewage,  

• Facilities for collecting and treating storm and surface waters, 

• Facilities for pumping, storing, and distributing water,  

• Parks, playgrounds and land for athletic fields,  

• Solid waste and recycling facilities, 

• Fire protection facilities,  

• Law enforcement facilities,  

• Emergency medical facilities, and 

• Libraries.  

1.2 Background  

The Village of Osceola is expecting population growth and commercial and industrial development in the 

future. The existing Needs Assessment was last updated in March 2006.  This was around the time 

where the regional area was seeing a significant housing boom and anticipating very large growth 

percentages.  Not anticipated was the recession in 2007-2009 when development seemed to stop.  

Therefore, many of the growth projections and assumptions did not come to fruition. As a result, the 

Village’s need to recoup cost for newly constructed well and wastewater treatment plant was not fulfilled 

by the calculated impact fees.  Also, with the continuing expansion of the economy, additional facilities 

will be needed to meet the anticipated demands of future development. 

The Village has retained Stantec to update the Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fees. The 

study included evaluating of all possible impact fees, determining fair and equitable ways to calculate 

sewer and water usages, and update to reflect new population values.  

This report updates the impact fees to satisfy the requirements of Wisconsin State Statute §66.0617.  The 

calculations properly allocate the capital costs for the facilities between existing development and new 

development and used as the basis for the recommended impact fees. 

Presently, the Town uses the general tax base or general obligation bonds and impact fees to help pay 

for infrastructure improvements.   As the cost of providing services and infrastructure continues to 

increase along with the pressure to control property taxes, impact fees provide an equitable means for 

both existing and new development to pay for portions of public infrastructure projects.  Wisconsin 

Statutes 66.0617 with revisions from 2005 Wisconsin Act 477, 2005 Wisconsin Act 203, 2007 Wisconsin 

Act 44, 2007 Wisconsin Act 96, 2009 Wisconsin Acts 180 and 2017 Wisconsin Acts 243 allows local 

governments to charge impact fees for public improvements. These fees can be used to recover costs to 

construct, expand, or improve public facilities necessary to accommodate land development and to 

maintain current levels of service within the Village. 

92 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Introduction 

 Project Number: 193810004 3
 

1.3 Summary  

Wisconsin impact fee law contains specific requirements for the process of adopting or amending an 

impact fee ordinance, for determining the amount that can be charged for an impact fee, and for 

managing and spending impact fee revenues. Impact fees may only be used to fund capital costs of 

public facilities, which are defined as the cost to construct, expand or improve public facilities. Eligible 

costs may include land, legal, planning, engineering and design costs. The amounts calculated in this 

report are the maximum amounts that may be charged for impact fees. The Village Board, at their 

discretion, may adopt a lower amount than calculated. 

Impact fees may not be used for operation and maintenance costs or to correct existing deficiencies in 

the public facilities for which they are imposed. Existing deficiencies may include: 

• Facilities or portions of facilities that need to be replaced due to age or obsolescence. 

• Improvements made to existing facilities to meet state or federal requirements or utilize improved 

technology. 

• Facilities or portions of facilities that result in an improved design standard, or the difference 

between the future design standard, as it would apply to current population, and the actual 

existing facility. 

The impact fee will be based on Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU). Thus, the fee relates to the “impact” 

each user has on the public infrastructure system. 

  

93 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Population and Projected Growth Analysis 

 Project Number: 193810004 4
 

2 Population and Projected Growth Analysis 

2.1 Introduction 

An important element of determining appropriate impact fees is projecting the amount of future 

development that will occur in the village during the selected planning period. These projections are 

important for planning for the facilities needed to serve new development as well as calculating the 

proportionate cost of facilities per unit of development.  

The planning period for the previous study was 20 years, from 2005-2025.  The projected growth rate of 

4.92% per year from the previous impact fee report was not realized, partially due to the unforeseen 

recession in 2007-2009.  The table below includes data and projections from the original impact fee study 

compared to actual population figures and growth rates. 

Table 2: Comparison of Projected vs. Actual Growth 

2005 Population – from original report 2,589 

2005 Households – based on 2.38 persons/household  1088 

 

2010 Population – based on original 4.92% annual growth 
 

3,292 

2010 Population - Actual 
 

2,568 

2010 households – based on original report 2.38 persons/household 1,383 

2010 households – Actual (2.25 people/household) 1,142 

 

2020 Population – based on original 4.92% annual growth 
 

5,321 

2020 Population - Actual 
 

2,765 

2020 households – based on original report 2.38 persons/household 2,236 

2020 households – Actual (2.18 people/household) 1,238 

 

Projected annual growth rate, 2005 – 2025 4.92% 

Actual annual growth rate, 2010 – 2020 0.28% 

Actual % change in population from 2010 – 2020 5.1% 

Growth rate was determined by analyzing the data from the previous table to determine actual growth 

from 2005-2020 and comparing with historic trends shown below.  The effect of picking an inaccurate 

growth rate results in slight overestimation at the 2010 population, but projects nearly double the 

population and households than occurred in 2020.  The people/household figure also decreased from 

2.25 in 2010 to 2.18 in 2020 and is projected to continue decreasing through 2040.  A figure of 2.18 

people/household will be used in this assessment to average the household size over the study period. 

  

94 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Population and Projected Growth Analysis 

 Project Number: 193810004 5
 

Overall growth trend of the village was analyzed to help determine an appropriate projected growth rate.  

Past population trends and future population projections were analyzed to determine an appropriate 

population growth.  Table 3 and Figure 1 display the % change in population for the Village of Osceola 

and total population.   

Table 3: % Change in Population 

1950 -
1960* 

1960 -
1970* 

1970 -
1980 

1980 - 
1990 

1990 -
2000 

2000 -
2010 

2010 -
2020 

2020 -
2030 ** 

2030 -
2040 ** 

35% 22% 37% 31% 17% 6% 5% 13% 2% 

* Data from original impact fee report. 

** Projected population numbers from WI Demographic Services Center. 

 

Figure 1: Village of Osceola Population Trends 

Overall trends show increased growth rates prior to 1990, with downward trend in the growth rate from 

1990 – present.  2030 and 2040 population numbers are projections, so the increased growth from 2010-

2020 to 2020-2030 is likely non-representative for the ultimate trend.  Anticipating a 5% growth going 

forward will provide a conservative growth estimated based on past data trends and future projections. 

Table 4 displays the projected growth during the planning period for this study, 2020-2040, using a 5% 
growth over the entire planning period, and a household size of 2.18 people/household: 

Table 4: Population & Growth Analysis 

2020 Population 2,765 

2020 Households – at 2.18 people/household 1,268 

 

2040 projected additional population 138 

2040 projected additional households 63 

 

2040 Projected TOTAL Population 2,903 

2040 Projected Households 1,332 

 
  

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040

P
o
p
u
la

tio
n

Year

95 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Population and Projected Growth Analysis 

 Project Number: 193810004 6
 

Besides the existing 245 acres of land currently used for industrial/commercial purposes, the Village has 
the following land committed to future development: 

• Osceola Business Park:  11 acres 

• Airport Business Park:  52 acres 

• Gateway:   10 acres 

• Osceola Heights:  51 acres 

• TOTAL:   124 acres 

Commercial/industrial development includes non-profit institutional uses that are similar to commercial 

and other non-residential development, such as churches, schools, and government buildings.  Existing 

and future industrial/commercial land will be converted to Equivalent Residential Units (ERU’s) in each 

impact fee analysis to determine utility demand based on land type. 

  

96 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Water System Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 7
 

3 Water System Needs Assessment 

3.1 Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The water supply for the Village of Osceola is/was provided by three wells: 

Well #2 has been abandoned. 

Well #3 is located south of on CTH M at Cottage Drive.  The well was drilled in 1986, is 600-feet deep, 

and a 6-inch casing diameter with a 75-hp motor. Actual pumping capacity of this well is 550 gallons per 

minute. 

Well #4 was constructed to accommodate future growth of the Village.  It is located south of Seminole 

Street near the eastern village limits and was drilled in 2005.  The well is 600 ft deep, 10-in casing 

diameter with a 250 hp motor.  Capacity of this pump is 1500 gallons per minute. 

3.2 Water Impact Fee Calculation 

The original impact fees report attributed the entire well #4 construction to future growth.  However, due 

to a report dated 7/1/2019, 45% of the cost of well #4 was to serve existing customers and 55% was 

needed for future growth. Total cost of the well was $871,193, so the cost associated with future growth is 

$479,156.  

Cost of well and pumphouse due to future growth: $479,156 

$$ Collected by impact fees to date:   ($83,128) 

Cost remaining to be collected by impact fees: $396,028 

Impact fees are calculated based on ERU (Equivalent Residential Units) for new users.  On average, the 

average water use per equivalent residential unit is 300 gallons per day (GPD). That is 1 ERU for the 

water system.  Commercial/Industrial property uses approximately 1,500 GPD per acre. Assuming 124 

acres of industrial and commercial development at 1,500 GPD per acre, equates to 620 ERU’s. See 

Table 5 for summary ERU and calculation of impact fee: 

Table 5: Calculation of Water System Impact Fee 

 

 

 

  

Industrial/Commercial ERU 620 

Additional households 2020-2040 63 

Total additional users (ERU) 683 

 

Total Cost/Total Additional Users per ERU $579.84 

97 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Water System Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 8
 

One ERU is considered to be a user with a single meter of either 5/8” or 3/4”, with equivalent meter size 

ratios applied to meters larger than 3/4”. Table 6 breaks down the costs per meter size:  

Table 6: Schedule of Recommended Fees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The revised impact fee for the water system is recommended to be $579 per Residential ERU 

based on meter size. The total impact fee will be based on the sum of all meters per building. 

Meter Size Ratio Water Impact Fee 

5/8” and 3/4” 1 $579 

1” 2.5 $1,447 

1 1/4" 3.75 $2,171 

1 1/2” 5 $2,895 

2” 8 $4,632 

3” 15 $8,685 

4” 25 $14,475 

6” 50 $28,950 

8” or larger 80 $46,320 

98 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Sewer System Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 9
 

4 Sewer System Needs Assessment 

4.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions  

The Village of Osceola owns and operates a wastewater treatment plant with a service area that 

encompasses both the Villages of Osceola and Dresser.  The Village of Osceola constructed a new 

wastewater treatment plant in 2006 to accommodate future loadings.  Future loadings were determined 

using population growth estimates for design year 2025, and a consensus from both Dresser and 

Osceola officials. 

4.2 Sewer Connection Fee Calculation 

Based on costs listed in the original study, the total construction cost of the Wastewater treatment plant is 

$6,122,000.  Because the Village of Dresser shares approximately 30% of the cost of the treatment plant, 

30% of the total cost has been deducted for calculation of impact fees.   

Cost of wastewater treatment plant:  $6,122,000 

Deduct Village of Dresser Share (30%):  ($1,836,600) 

Deduct $$$ collected by impact fees to date: ($210,298) 

Treatment plant cost remaining:  $4,075,102 

On average, a household uses 300 GPD per unit, which is 1 ERU of sanitary sewer usage.  

Commercial/Industrial property uses approximately 1,000 GPD per acre of land.  

At the time of design, the treatment plant utilized 214,000 GPD for existing users.  That equals 713 ERU. 

Osceola has collected an additional 223 ERU since plant construction, leaving an additional 490 ERU 

capacity for the additional growth for a total system capacity of 1,426 ERU.  As a check, the additional 

demand based on future growth was calculated below to determine the system can adequately provide 

for future growth.  Impact fee calculation is based on treatment plant cost / total system capacity. 

See Table 6 for ERU calculation for confirmation of system capacity for additional growth and calculation 

of impact fee: 

Table 7: Calculation of Sanitary System Impact Fee 

Industrial/Commercial ERU 413 

Additional households 2020- 2040 63 

Total users (ERU) 476 

 

Treatment Plant Cost / Total System ERU (1,426) $2,857.71 

 

  

99 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Sewer System Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 10
 

One ERU is considered to be a user with a single meter of either 5/8” or 3/4”, with equivalent meter size 

ratios applied to meters larger than 3/4”. Table 6 breaks down the costs per meter size:  

Table 8: Schedule of Recommended Fees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The revised impact fee for the sanitary sewer system is recommended to be $2,857 per Residential 

ERU based on meter size. The total impact fee will be based on the sum of all meters per building. 

Meter Size Ratio Sewer Impact Fee 

5/8” and 3/4” 1 $2,857 

1” 2.5 $7,142 

1 1/4" 3.75 $10,713 

1 1/2” 5 $14,285 

2” 8 $22,856 

3” 15 $42,855 

4” 25 $71,425 

6” 50 $142,850 

8” or larger 80 $228,560 

100 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Library Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 11
 

5 Library Needs Assessment 

5.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future 

Needs 

The Village recently completed construction of a new public library in 2018. The new public library 

currently has 11,000 people in the service area and 5,000 cardholders. The new public library is 14,138 

SF and meets the existing needs of the facility while providing for future growth.   

5.2 Library Impact Fee 

With the construction of the new building, the cost of the library will be divided by TOTAL PEOPLE IN 

THE SERVICE AREA divided by projected household size since the facility meets existing and future 

needs of the community. Commercial/industrial facilities will not be used in the calculation since they do 

not contribute to the use of the library.   

Cost of Library:     $3,997,765 

Donations/Payments:    ($3,067,981) 

CDBG Award:     ($428,749) 

Library Sale Adjustment:   ($200,000) 

Deduct $$$ collected by impact fees to date**: ($41,865) 

Library cost remaining:   $259,128 

Total service area (people):   11,000 

Projected household size:   2.18 

Total households in the service area:  5,046 

Total cost/household:    $51.35 

The revised library impact fee cost is recommended at $51 per residential ERU. 

**Note that the library cost was included in the original needs assessment category “municipal buildings”.  

The library comprised 31% of the total “municipal buildings” impact fee, so the total collected to date was 

calculated for the library portion using that percentage. 

  

101 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Public Works Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 12
 

6 Public Works Needs Assessment 

6.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future 

Needs 

The existing public works building is located adjacent to the wastewater treatment plant. The Village has 

outgrown that facility. Equipment is parked outside and there is no room to perform equipment 

maintenance or house public works staff.  Therefore, an expansion to the public works facility is being 

proposed in the unused space at the west end of the new fire station. Improvements needed to transform 

that space into usable space for public works is estimated at $1.3 million.   

6.2 Public Works Impact Fee 

The new building along with the existing space will meet existing and future needs of the community; 

therefore, the cost will be divided by total future ERU since the proposed facility meets existing and future 

needs of the community as a whole.  Furthermore, demand will be split between residential and 

commercial based on acreage, as public works (road maintenance, plowing, etc) is needed regardless of 

land usage on the streets. 

Commercial acreage includes a total of 369 acres (current and future development acreage).  To convert 

commercial/industrial to residential equivalent, the land will be calculated as if it were residential housing.  

The zoning for a single family residential requires a minimum 12,000 sf lot size which equals 3.63 

residential units per acre.  369 acres would be equivalent to 1,339 residential units. 2040 projected 

households is 1,332. Therefore, calculating the percentage of residential (1,332) versus 

commercial/industrial (1,339) gives 50% of the demand will be due to residential properties, and the 

remaining 50% to commercial/industrial properties. 

Cost of the public works building:  $1,300,000 

Deduct $$$ collected by impact fees to date**: ($11,314) 

Total Public works building cost remaining: $1,288,686 

RESIDENTIAL 

Residential share of the building:  $644,343 

2040 projected households:   1,332 

Total cost/household:    $483.74 

COMMERCIAL 

Commercial/Industrial share of the building: $644,343 

Total commercial/industrial acreage:  369 

Total cost/acre:    $1,746.19 

102 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Public Works Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 13
 

The revised impact fee for the public works facility is $483 per residential unit and $1,746 per 

commercial acre.  

**Note that the public works building was included in the original needs assessment category “municipal 

buildings”.  Public Works comprised 8% of the total “municipal buildings” impact fee, so the total collected 

to date was calculated for the public works portion using that percentage. 

  

103 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Roadway Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 14
 

 

7 Roadway Needs Assessment 

7.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future 

Needs 

A transportation plan is incorporated into the Village of Osceola’s Comprehensive Plan. It shows all 

existing roads and their proposed functional classifications. The functional classification of a roadway is 

based on the standard guidelines of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation’s Facilities Development 

Manual (FDM).  

The proposed roads included in the impact fees are currently classified as local roadways; however, with 

proposed development in the vicinity of these roadway, we anticipate the need to increase the 

classification to a minor collector roadway. Minor collectors provide connection between neighborhoods 

and the county and state highway system. To safely accommodate the projected increased traffic and 

provide a reasonable level of service, the roadways must be expanded from local road standards to minor 

collector standards. The proposed roads are listed below; however, please note that this list of roadways 

is not meant to be exclusive. Development may occur along other roadways within the Village which may 

require the improvement of those roadways to accommodate new development. Any impact fees 

ultimately approved by ordinance passed by the Village Board based on this Needs Assessment shall 

therefore also apply to development along any such unlisted roadways. The proposed roads are:  

• 3rd Avenue and River Street from STH 35 to 4th Avenue 

• 68th Avenue from STH 35 to 258th Street 

Based on current traffic volumes, existing local roads are adequate to support the current traffic levels. 

However, additional traffic generated by expected growth will affect the level of service and traffic patterns 

of these roadways. Therefore, improvements to these roadways will be necessary to adequately serve 

the increase in traffic caused by new development. The improvements include the increase of roadway 

width from the Village of Osceola standard roadway of 32-feet from backs of curbs for urban or 24-feet 

with 3-foot shoulders for rural to Wisconsin Department of Transportation’s FDM guidelines per 

classification and traffic count, and additions of bypass and turn lanes, if needed. 

7.2 Roadway Impact Fee 

Roadway impact fees will be applied to residential and commercial/industrial properties because the 

proposed roads to be upgraded serve these land uses. The amount to charge for impact fees is based on 

the percentage of trips generated for each land use. Impact fees for residential development are imposed 

on each new residential unit, or residential equivalent unit (REU) based on a typical trip generation rate 

for single family homes. If more dense housing – duplexes, townhomes, apartments, etc. – is anticipated 

or proposed, associated typical trip generation rates for each of those uses are assigned. Impact fees for 

commercial/industrial development, including non-profit uses such as churches, schools, and government 

buildings, are also based on trips generated with two adjustments. Fees are based on the trips generated 

by the development, adjusted first for pass-by or share trips, and then weighted according to their 

104 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Roadway Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 15
 

anticipated location within the Village. The weighting factor reduces the trip impact to 5% of the estimated 

trips generated.  

 

Cost estimates have been prepared to expand roads from current road width to minor collector roadway 

standards. The cost estimates are based on recent bids for roadway reconstruction projects in western 

Wisconsin. The cost estimate for 3rd Avenue has been adjusted to account for the proportional amount of 

the 2024-2025 LRIP MSID grant. The impact fee for roads is calculated by first dividing the expanded 

roadway improvement cost by a percentage of trips attributed to residential uses and a percentage 

attributed to commercial/industrial uses.  

 

Table 9:Calculation of Road Impact Fee 

Land Use Type 
Average Trips 

per Day* 

2020-2040 Additional Projections 

Quantity 
Trips per 

Day 
% of Total 

Residential – Single Fam 9.57/unit 63 New Units 603 49.4% 

Commercial/Industrial 4.98/acre 124 Acres 617 50.6% 

TOTAL   1,220 100.0% 

 
* Based on ITE Trip Generation Manual and trip generation rates for residential, commercial, and industrial land uses. 

The commercial/industrial trip rates are adjusted for pass-by or shared trips and weighted for location within the 

Village to 5% of the calculated trips. The calculated trips for C/I uses per ITE rates are 12,349 trips but are reduced to 

617 weighted trips in the table above, considering the 5% location factor.  Percentages are rounded. 

 

The total cost eligible to be recovered through impact fees is $387,166. The table above identifies the 

proportionate share of costs that can be imposed on residential impact fees is about 49.4%. The tables 

below calculate the impact fee for new residential development and commercial development within the 

village. The dollar amount to be divided among all future C/I development was weighted using the 5% 

location factor to arrive at about 50.6% of roadway costs to be allocated to this future C/I development. 

Within that amount, each new use will be assessed on a per trip basis, using each new use’s share of the 

actual 12,349 trips calculated.  

Table 10:Roadway Impact Fee 

Total Estimated Expansion Cost $387,166

Percentage of Cost for residential land use 49.4%

Subtotal $191,260

 

2020-2040   Additional Residential Units 63

Impact Fee per REU $3,035.87

(Percentages are rounded) 

 

105 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Roadway Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 16
 

Table 11:Commercial / Industrial Road Improvement Impact Fee 

Total Estimated Expansion Cost $387,166

Percentage of Cost for com./industrial land 50.6%

Subtotal $195,906

  

Projected Commercial/Industrial Acres 124

Projected Commercial/Industrial Trips 12,349

 

Impact Fee per C/I Trip $15.86

(Percentages are rounded)  

 

Roadway impact fees for some typical uses are under these formulas are as follows: 

• Light Industrial/Storage, 10,000 square feet:   $786 

• Retail Use, 10,000 square feet:     $4,919 

• Office, 10,000 square feet:     $1,544 

• Gas Station/Convenience Store, 8 gas pumps:   $16,367 

• Restaurant, 6,5000 square feet:     $9,829 

The impact fee for Roadways is recommended to be $3,035 per Residential ERU. 

  

106 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 17
 

8 Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment 

8.1 Inventory of Existing Conditions and Identification of Future 

Needs 

Currently, the Village of Osceola has numerous existing parks and recreation facilities, as identified in the 

Village of Osceola Outdoor Recreation as approved by the Village Board on September 9, 2014.  Table 7 

shows the acreage of all parks within the Village based on the Outdoor Recreation plan: 

Table 12:Acreage of All Parks Within the Village 

Park Size (ac) 

Third Avenue Triangle Park 0.52 

10th Avenue Triangle Park 0.005 

Smith Park 2.61 

Gateway Meadows 3.11 

Ladd Memorial Park 0.63 

Eric Park 0.75 

Oakey Park 12.32 

Millpond Park 2.55 

Gristmill Park 0.27 

Geiger Brewery Park 1 

Schillberg Park 92 

Cascade Falls, Wilke Glen 4.1 

Osceola Eagle Bluff 17.54 

Pheasant Run Parks 3.99 

Total Acreage 141.4 

This parkland listed does not include acreages at the school campuses, soccer fields, or nearby 

state/federal facilities.   

The number and total acreage of parks within the Village of Osceola exceed the National Recreation and 

Park Association (NRPA) guidelines for number of parks per 1,000 population, and park acreage per 

1,000 population for both current and projected population numbers.   The Outdoor Parks and Recreation 

identifies several future expansion opportunities to the park system, but none are appropriate for impact 

fee assessment.  

The Village did identify some proposed improvements attributed to new Village growth including: 

• Schillberg Park Playground 

• Gateway Park Development & Construction 

• Park Signage and Wayfinding 

• Smith Park Development & Construction 

107 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment 

 Project Number: 193810004 18
 

8.2 Parks and Recreation Impact Fee 

Impact fee assessment for Parks and Recreation is determined using Total Households.  

Commercial/Industrial ERU’s are not calculated, as those properties do not use Parklands.   

Table 13: Parks and Recreation Impact Fee 

Total Estimated Cost $185,000 
Less Impact Fee Balance to-date ($67,944.96) 

Total additional cost $117,055 

 

2040 Projected Households 1,332 

Impact Fee per ERU $87.88 

The revised impact fee for Parks and Recreation is recommended to be $87 per Residential ERU. 

  

108 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Recommended Fees and Implementation 

 Project Number: 193810004 19
 

9 Recommended Fees and Implementation 

9.1 Summary 

The purpose of this study was to analyze and update the impact fees for the Village of Osceola by 

reviewing the previous Needs assessment document created March 2006.  The same general 

methodology was utilized in the new study as the previous study, while figures and numbers were 

updated to reflect actual growth and usage.   The report fulfills the public facilities needs assessment 

procedural requirement under Wisconsin Statutes §66.0617. 

In order to determine the appropriate amount of the fees, the following analysis was performed: 

• The previous Needs assessment document from March 2006 was reviewed. 

• Facility inventory displayed in the previous document was verified and updated. 

• Usage forecasts were updated regarding future demands in the Village. 

• Costs of recommended projects were allocated to the proportionate share of facilities that are 

needed to serve new development during the planning period. ERU was used as a basis of 

comparing users for consistency with the previous Needs Assessment. 

• Fees were calculated based on the analysis in the previous steps. 

9.2 Recommended Impact Fee Schedule 

Based on the analyses described above, this study recommends that the Village revise its impact fee 

ordinance and impose impact fees for facilities as shown in the table below.  These amounts recommend 

the maximum amount that the Village could impose, based on the application of Wisconsin Statutes 

66.0617. The Village may choose to impose lesser amounts as a matter of policy.  

Single-Family residential users will be charged based on the numbers in the table below. Water and 

Sanitary Sewer will be based on the sum of all meter sizes based on Table 6 and Table 8 in this report. 

Table 14:  Recommended Impact Fees 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Equiv. Residential 

Unit (ERU) 

Commercial / 

Industrial 

Water Impact Fee $579 

$579/ERU/meter 

size 

Sanitary Sewer Impact Fee $2,857 $2,857/ERU 

Library Impact Fee $51 N/A 

Public Works Impact Fee $483 $1,746/acre 

Roadway Impact Fee $3,035 $15.86/trip 

Parks and Recreation Impact Fee $87 N/A 

109 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Recommended Fees and Implementation 

 Project Number: 193810004 20
 

9.3 Impact on the Availability of Affordable Housing 

One of the requirements of Wisconsin Statute §66.0617 is to estimate the cumulative effect of all 

proposed and existing impact fees on the availability of affordable housing within the municipality. 

Although the fees are similar to the fees from the previous needs assessment, they may have an effect 

on affordability to those in the low-income brackets.  The Village may wish to reduce or waive the impact 

fees for those units that can prove low-income benefit. 

Per Table 9, the total impact fee for each REU is $7,092.  The following table outlines the effect of this fee 

on affordable housing based on a mortgage for a median home value in Osceola of $270,000 and a 

median household income of $45,691, assuming the entire cost of the fees is added to the home price.  

For a 30-year mortgage at 6% interest rate, adding the impact fee results in roughly 1.1 percent increase 

of household income that goes towards housing – from 54.3% of median household income to 55.4% of 

median household income.  For lower cost housing and lower income households, the fees would be a 

proportionally larger share of the home price and the household income.  See calculations in the following 

table. 

Table 15: Effect of Impact Fee on Affordable Housing 

Median House Value  $270,000  
Median Household Income $45,691  

 

Annual Cost of Housing: 

Annual Mortgage Payment $19,615.21 30 years @ 6% 

Estimated Property Taxes $3,186.00  

Estimated Insurance $2,000.00  

Total Payment $24,801.21  

 

Impact Fee Added to Mortgage $7,092  

Median Housing Value + Impact Fee $277,092  

Annual Mortgage Payment w/Impact Fee $20,130.43 30 years @ 6% 

Total Payment incl taxes and insurance (T/I) $25,316.43  

 

Mortgage Payment as % of Income 54.3%  

Mortgage Payment + impact fee as % of income 55.4%  

Increase in % of income for housing   1.1%  

 

  

110 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Recommended Fees and Implementation 

 Project Number: 193810004 21
 

9.4 Enacting the Impact Fee Ordinance 

Prior to amending a local ordinance to update impact fees on new development, a municipality must 

comply with the following procedural requirements: 

1. Prepare a needs assessment for the public facilities for which it is anticipated that impact fees 

may be imposed. The public facilities needs assessment shall include the following: 

a. An inventory of existing public facilities, including identification of any existing deficiencies 

in those public facilities, for which it is anticipated that an impact fee may be imposed. 

b. An identification of new, improved or expanded public facilities that will be required 

because of new development, or the identification of excess capacity in existing public 

facilities that are used by new development. This shall be based upon an explicit level of 

service and standards. 

c. A detailed estimate of the capital costs of providing or constructing the new, improved or 

expanded public facilities, including an estimate of the cumulative effect of all proposed 

and existing impact fees on the availability of affordable housing within the municipality. 

2. Hold a public hearing prior to enacting or amending an ordinance to impose impact fees. The 

public facilities needs assessment must be available for public review for at least 20 days before 

the date of the hearing. 

In order to implement the recommendations contained in this report and amend the impact fees for public 

facilities in the Village of Osceola, the following remaining steps must be taken: 

• Present the findings of this report to the Village Board. 

• Revise the existing impact fee ordinance to include the recommended changes to the impact 

fees. 

• Publish a Class 1 notice in the Village newspaper prior to the public hearing as required under 

Wisconsin Statutes §66.0617(3). The needs assessment must be available for public inspection 

and copying at least 20 days prior to the public hearing as required under Wisconsin Statutes 

§66.0617(4)(b). 

• Conduct a public hearing prior to amending the impact fee ordinance. 

• After the public hearing, the Village Board may adopt the amended impact fee ordinance as 

recommended or adopt it with additional amendments. 

9.5 Imposition and Collection of Fees 

Impact fees may be imposed on persons developing land, where development is defined as the creation 

of additional residential dwelling units or nonresidential uses that create the need for new, expanded or 

improved public facilities. In other words, development can mean the construction of a new residential or 

nonresidential building, or the expansion or remodeling of an existing residential or nonresidential building 

that results in a use that requires a higher demand for public services than the previous use. 

111 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Recommended Fees and Implementation 

 Project Number: 193810004 22
 

The impact fees collected must be reduced to compensate for other capital costs imposed by the 

municipality to provide or pay for public facilities due to new land development. For example, if a 

developer is required to contribute land, facilities, or other items of value to provide a facility that a 

municipality would otherwise fund with impact fees, then the impact fee charged to the developer must be 

reduced proportionately. 

9.6 Managing Impact Fees 

Impact fees must be placed into segregated accounts, meaning each type of fee has its own account. 

The impact fees and any interest earned on the account balance must be expended only for the facilities 

for which the fees have been imposed. Impact fees may be used to pay directly for project costs or may 

be used to pay for the debt service on bonds issued to finance a capital project. 

In order to ensure that impact fees are not used to pay for more than the proportionate share of capital 

costs for facilities needed to serve new development, the public facilities needs assessment should be 

referenced when determining the amount of impact fee revenues to apply to facility funding. If a project is 

modified from what is detailed in the needs assessment, it may be necessary to review and update the 

needs assessment and impact fee ordinance. 

Impact fees that are collected but are not used within a reasonable period of time after collection must be 

refunded to the property owner at the time of refund for which the impact fee was imposed. The current 

time limits are as follows: 

1. Impact fees collected prior the adoption of this revised impact fees report must be spent in the 

timeline imposed under the original impact fee report. 

2. Impact fees must be spent within 8 years of collection. 

Once the Village adopts an ordinance amending the impact fees, the time limits for expending fees 

collected after the effective date of the amendment would be governed by that date. 

It is recommended that the Village continue to take the following steps to ensure that impact fees are 

expended within the statutory time limits and that fees are properly applied to the projects shown in the 

public facilities needs assessment: 

• Maintain a spreadsheet or other list of the amounts collected, showing the date paid, tax key, 

property owner, number of units, fee per unit, and total amount paid for each type of fee. 

• Maintain a spreadsheet showing the projects funded through impact fees, by type of fee. At a 

minimum, it should show the year of the project, a brief description, total cost (including 

construction and legal, engineering, etc), the amount cash financed from impact fees, the amount 

borrowed, a debt service schedule and the share of debt service to be paid from impact fees. 

Ideally, this spreadsheet would also be linked to a sheet showing the balance of impact fee funds 

by account, showing payments made from each impact fee fund for cash financing and debt 

service payments. 

112 of 148



Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update 
Recommended Fees and Implementation 

 Project Number: 193810004 23
 

9.7 Periodic Review 

It is further recommended that the Village increase the amount of the fees each year by an inflationary 

factor to make the fees more inter-generationally equitable, in that the amount of the fee paid by any new 

development is approximately equal to the amount paid in any other year, adjusted for inflation. The 

impact fees calculated in this report were based on numerous assumptions and forecasts in future 

development and service levels provided by the Village. The exact specifications of public facilities’ 

design and costs may vary from the estimates developed through the analysis of this report. Therefore, it 

is recommended that the impact fees be reviewed on a consistent basis to adjust for changes in inflation, 

development trends or major changes in project plans, ideally on a schedule of every three to five years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

113 of 148



APPENDIX A - ROADWAY EXPANSION COSTS 

     

     

3RD AVENUE AND RIVER STREET 

STH 35 to 4th Street 

Minor Collector Roadway 

575 L.F. 

     

Item Unit Quantity Unit 
Price 

Total Price 

Common Excavation CY 256 $15.00  $3,833  

8" Aggregate Base - Extra 8' TN 259 $15.00  $3,879  

3.5" Asphaltic Surface - Extra 8' TN 118 $90.00  $10,646  

1/2" Asphaltic Surface over 36' TN 76 $90.00  $6,844  

Storm culvert extension LF 24 $100.00  $2,400  

Subtotal 
   

$27,603  

15% Contingency 
   

$4,140  

10% Engineering and Admin 
   

$3,174  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 
   

$34,917  

*2024-2025 LRIP MSID grant: $400,000 based on total length of 1,848 LF 

Proportionate Amount: 575 LF/1,848 LF = 0.31 x $400,000 = $124,000 x 22% extra 
width (8’/36’) 

-$27,280 

   TOTAL $7,637 
     

68TH AVENUE 

STH 35 to 258th Street 

Minor Collector Roadway 

4,400 L.F. 

     

Item Unit Quantity Unit 
Price 

Total Price 

Common Excavation CY 3178 $15.00  $47,667  

8" Aggregate Base - Extra 13' TN 3216 $15.00  $48,239  

3.5" Asphaltic Surface - Extra 13' TN 1471 $90.00  $132,382  

1/2" Asphaltic Surface over 39' TN 630 $90.00  $56,735  

Storm culvert extension LF 150 $100.00  $15,000  

Subtotal 
   

$300,023  

15% Contingency 
   

$45,003  

10% Engineering and Admin 
   

$34,503  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 
   

$379,529  
     

     

TOTAL EXPANSION COST OF ROADWAYS          $387,166  

     

 

114 of 148



APPENDIX B: COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL LAND USE TRAFFIC IMPACT 

 

Based on currently zoned commercial and industrial property in the Village of Osceola, it is an�cipated 

that there will be 124 acres of commercial and industrial development.  The breakdown is assumed as 

follows: 

Industrial: 

63 acres – General Light Industrial 

 

Commercial: 

35 acres – commercial retail 

26 acres – general office uses 

 

These assumed land uses are for estimating purposes only. Impact fees will be based on a formula 

tied to the traffic generation of each use and future development projects will be assessed based on 

their actual use and trip generation. 

 

Background – Market Demand 

Development of land for commercial and industrial uses is closely �ed to the accessibility of businesses 

to the markets they serve. Because the exis�ng transporta�on system serving the Village of Osceola 

consists mostly of rural two-lane highways, access to sizable markets is limited. Therefore, commercial 

and industrial development within the Village of Osceola has been mostly related to serving the needs of 

the local popula�on. Furthermore, because Osceola’s household base is rela�vely small (under 1,300), 

the types of businesses that can be supported tend to be small as well.  

 

The presence of mostly small businesses supported by the local popula�on support the pass-by theory. 

Trips are adjusted to account for pass-by trips, where a trip going to a given des�na�on passes by 

another use and turns in. Many commercial uses will have a pass-by factor, reducing their trip numbers 

compared to the raw ITE rates. 

 

The roadway impact fees will be based on the propor�on of traffic that can be assigned to various land 

uses. The accepted basis for es�ma�ng traffic is the Ins�tute of Transporta�on Engineers (ITE) Trip 

Genera�on Manual, which assigns trip genera�on rates to various types of land use.  

 

Background – Traffic Impact 

The size and construction of roadways is closely related to the amount of traffic on them. The 

roadway impact fees will be based on the proportion of traffic that can be assigned to various land 

uses. The accepted basis for estimating traffic is the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 

Generation Manual, which assigns trip generation rates to various types of land use. We have 

used ITE figures in the analysis on the attached spreadsheet, with further adjustment to account 

for pass-by trips, where a trip going to a given destination passes by another use and turns in. 

Many commercial uses will have a pass-by factor, reducing their trip numbers compared to the 

115 of 148



raw ITE rates. 

 
In addition to the pass-by factor, a weighting factor was also applied to the trip numbers. This 

weighting factor is based the proximity of the available land to residential and other existing 

commercial and industrial properties.  

 

Traffic Impact / Trips Calcula'on 

Land Use Units Acres An�cipated 

Sq. Ft. 

Trip Rate* Pass-by Trip Factor Adjusted Trip 

Rate 

Adjusted Trips 

(rounded to the 

nearest whole 

number) 

 Industrial Varies 63 548,856 4.96 1.00 4.96 2,722

Specialty Retail Varies 25 107,500 44.32 0.70 31.02 3,334

General Office Varies 26 169,000 9.74 1.00 9.74 1,646

Gas/convenience** Pump 5 Varies 322.50 0.40 129.00 1,548

Restaurant, high 

turnover 

 5 32,500 112.18 0.85 95.35 3,099

   
Single Family 

Resid.*** 
63  9.57 1.00 9.57 603

 

* Trip rate for Specialty Retail, General Office and restaurant per 1,000 sq. C. 

 Assump�ons: Specialty Retail – 4,300 sf per acre 

   General Office – 6,500 sf per acre 

   Restaurant – 6,500 sf per acre 

**Trip rate for Gas/convenience per gas pump. 

*** Trip rate for Single Family Residence per unit. 

 

Weigh�ng Factor (assumed reduc�on in impact of C-I trips on roadway projects) 

 

 Trips 

 

Weigh�ng Factor 

 

Weighted Trips Percent of Wtd. Trips 

C-I trips 12,349 5% 617 50.6% 

Resid. trips 603 100% 603 49.4% 

Total   1,220  

 

116 of 148



Municipality Water Sewer Library

Public Works 

building Roads Parks Police Fire/EMS TOTAL

St. Croix Falls $220.00 $1,110.00 $640.00 $1,970.00

Somerset $1,082.00 $468.00 $150.00 $142.00 $57.00 $1,899.00

New Richmond $1,312.00 $960.00 $1,694.00 $1,431.00 $681.00 $221.00 $6,299.00

Baldwin $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $3,400.00

River Falls $2,454.00 $1,724.00 $352.00 $577.00 $345.00 $5,452.00

Osceola-proposed $579.00 $2,857.00 $51.00 $483.00 $3,035.00 $87.00 $7,092.00

Osceola-PC 

recommendation $490.00 $2,417.00 $43.00 $409.00 $2,568.00 $74.00 $6,001.00

LOCAL COMPARISONS

IMPACT FEE TYPE

117 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Planning Commission    

From: Devin Swanberg Village Administrator  

CC: Village Board 

Date: August 30th, 2024 

Re: Pinnacle Development  

 

Overview 

Pinnacle, in collaboration with Cedar Corp as the engineering firm, is proposing a new residential 
development south of the Village of Osceola. The development is designed to offer a diverse range of 
housing options to meet the needs of various demographics in the community. This memo outlines the 
key aspects of the proposed development, which will be subject to a petition for annexation should it 
receive positive feedback from the Planning Commission and Village Board. 

Development Details 

The proposed development will be structured as an open-build community with guidelines established 
through a Planned Unit Development (PUD). The key components of the development are as follows: 

• Single-Family Homes: 

o Number of Lots: 61 

o Lot Width: 60 feet 

o Description: These lots are intended for traditional single-family homes, providing ample space 
for families and individuals looking for a suburban lifestyle. 

• Twin Homes: 

o Number of Lots: 42 

o Lot Width: 80 feet 

o Description: Twin homes will cater to those seeking a semi-detached living arrangement, 
offering the benefits of a single-family home with a slightly smaller footprint and shared wall. 

• Villa-Style Homes: 

o Number of Lots: 34 

118 of 148



⚫ Page 2 

 

o Lot Width: 55 feet 

o Description: Villa-style homes are designed for those looking for lower-maintenance living, 
often appealing to empty nesters or retirees. These homes will provide a comfortable and 
manageable living space with the convenience of smaller lots. 

Next Steps 

If the Planning Commission and Village Board respond positively to this concept, Pinnacle will proceed 
with the formal petition for annexation. The annexation would bring the development area under the 
jurisdiction of the Village of Osceola, allowing for the necessary zoning and infrastructure planning to 
move forward. 

We are eager to receive your feedback and are prepared to make any necessary adjustments to align 
with the Village's vision for growth and development. 

 

119 of 148



C O R P O R A T I O N

68TH AVE.

65
T

H
 A

V
E

.

25
8T

H
 S

T
.

PINNACLE LAND DEVELOPMENT
52 ACRE MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA
AIRPORT

TOWN OFFARMINGTON

TO
W

N
 O

F

FAR
M

IN
G

TO
N

TOWN OFFARMINGTON

- 61 LOTS - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 60' WIDTH (TYP)
- 42 LOTS/84 UNITS - TWIN HOME RESIDENTIAL - 80' WIDTH (TYP)
- 34 LOTS - VILLA HOME RESIDENTIAL - 55' WIDTH (TYP)
- WETLANDS
- STORM WATER/PARKLAND

LEGEND

120 of 148



- 61 LOTS - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 60' WIDTH (TYP)
- 42 LOTS/84 UNITS - TWIN HOME RESIDENTIAL - 80' WIDTH (TYP)
- 34 LOTS - VILLA HOME RESIDENTIAL - 55' WIDTH (TYP)
- WETLANDS
- STORM WATER/PARKLAND

LEGEND

C O R P O R A T I O N

68TH AVE.

65
T

H
 A

V
E

.

25
8T

H
 S

T
.

PINNACLE LAND DEVELOPMENT
52 ACRE MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA
AIRPORT

TOWN OFFARMINGTON

TO
W

N
 O

F

FAR
M

IN
G

TO
N

TOWN OFFARMINGTON

121 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Admin and Finance   

From: Devin Swanberg Village Administrator  

CC: Village Board  

Date: September 6th, 2024 

Re: Police Chief   

Andrew Bach has served as Interim Chief since former Police Chief Ron Pedrys retired in 
December 2023. During this time, Andrew has excelled in the role, demonstrating that he is the 
best candidate for the position of Chief. Given his outstanding performance and long-standing 
leadership within the department and the community, I believe we should not reopen the 
recruitment for a Police Chief. I recommend that we remove the interim title from Andrew Bach 
and begin contract negotiations to appoint him as the new Chief of the Osceola Police 
Department. 

 

Recommendation: Admin and Finance board recommend we enter into negotiations to make 
Interim Chief Andrew Bach the Police Chief. 

122 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Admin and Finance   

From: Devin Swanberg Village Administrator  

CC: Village Board  

Date: September 6th, 2024 

Re: Police Staffing    

Since the combination of police departments has stalled and reached an impasse, we need to 
restore our police department to full operational capacity. To provide 24-hour coverage, we 
need to hire two additional officers. Staff recommends hiring two new officers and accepting 
lateral transfers. We also propose entering into negotiations with the union to modify the 
current contract. 

 

Recommendation: Admin and Finance recommended hiring two officers. This allows the 
department to get back to 5 FTE.  

123 of 148



                                           Memo 

1 

To: Admin and Finance   

From: Devin Swanberg Village Administrator  

CC: Village Board  

Date: September 6th, 2024 

Re: Fire Hall Roof  

The capital improvement plan for 2024 allocated $70,000 for a new roof for the fire hall, which is 
currently experiencing a leak issue. At the last admin finance meeting, it was recommended that 
they obtain quotes for a shingle roof instead of a metal roof. Paul solicited three quotes for this 
project, but only one (Sunrise Remolders) of them included the flashing necessary to fix the leak. 
The other companies declined to add it to their scope of work. The company that did include the 
flashing was the lowest bidder. Although their bid exceeded the $70,000 budget, the Fire 
Department can cover the additional cost using the building and maintenance line item in their 
operating and maintenance budget. 

Recommendation: Admin and Finance reccomends approval as presented     

124 of 148



§E##DE!ESR¥

Sunrise Remodelers
735 Snelling Avenue  N
St.  Paul  MN  55104
MN  LIC# CR051518
WI  LIC# DC-042200484
Quality Service Since 1995
Phone:  (651) 762-9295

Company Representative
Steve Schubert
steve@sunriseremodelers.com

Paul Elfstrom-Fire Hall
Osceloa Fire Department
657 Wisconsin 35
0sceola, Wl 54020
(715)  557-0300

Roofing Section

Material

GAF Timberline Armorshield  11

GAF Seal-A-Ridge Armorshield  (25')

Estimate Roof
Replacemseencttj(osnh6nnq}i

08/26/2024

Job:  Paul  Elfstrom-Fire  Hall

cGvp{\,€\qugngiv+al
vJ'^.I:J-+

- ¢viL\=" ud)  "

cpAC5

GAF Prostart Starter Shingle Strip (120')

Starter shingles, like GAF Prostart Starter Shingle, are crucial for your roofing system.  Here's why you need them:

Enhanced  Protection:  T-hey add  an extra layer of pro{ection to vulnerable rc)of eclges, guarding against wind uplift and water infiltration that
can cause damage ancl leaks

Improved wind  Resistance:  Properly securing the first row of shingles win starter shingles boosts the overall wind resistance cif your roof,

preventing shingle blow-offs even  in strong winds.

Starter shingles provide added protection, improve wind resistance, create a seamless appearance, and save installation time. They are
vital for a durable, attractive roof that safeguards yoiir home for years to come`

GAF Tiger Paw Underlayment (10 sq)

GAF Tiger Paw Underlayment is a game-changer for your roof`s  protection.  It c>ffers two standout features that you'll appreciate.  Firstly, it
acts as a powerful barrier against moisture, This means it prevents water from seeping  into your roof deck, eliminating the risk of leaks, rot,
and other water-related damage. So, you can trust that your roof will stay dry ancl intact, ensuring the longevity of your entire rooring
system.

Secondly, Tiger Paw Underlayment is designed to be incredibly clurable.  It's  built to withstand harsh weather conditions, sharp objects, and

potential  Impacts, With its highquality constriiction, it acts as an extra  layer of defense, protecting your roof from damage caiised by
things like falling  branches or heavy rain` This durability gives you  peace of mind, knowing that your roof is well-equipped to handle
whatever nature throws its way.

By irivesting in GAF Tiger Paw Underlayment, you're making a smart choice for the long-term health and resilience of your roof.  It's a solid
investment that ensures your roof remains strong, secure, and protected against moisture-related i§§ues and external threats.

GAF StormGuard  lee & Water Shield  (2 SQ)

GAF Cobra Snow Country Advancecl  Ridge Vent -12" (4')

GAF Cobra Snow Couiitry Advanced  Ridge Vent js a  must~have for your rooring system.  Here's why..

Efficient Ventilation: The advanced design of Cobra Snow Country allows for optimal ventilation  in your attic.  It promotes the proper airflow,
removing excess heat and moisture that can lead to damage, such as mold growth and deteriorating roof components. With improved
ventilation, you can enjoy a healthier and more energy-efficient home.

Snow and Weather Protection: Cobra Snow Country is specifically designed to witlistand  harsh winter conditions.  Its unique snow fllter
helps prevent snow and debris from infiltrating your attic space, keeping it clean and free from  pc>tential issues associated with snow
accumulation, such as insulation damage or ice dams.

GAF Cobra Snow Country Advanced  Ridge Vent ensures efficient ventilation and offers snow and weather protection, making it an essential
component for a well-ventilated and  resilient roofing system.

Tri-Built Aluminum  Base  Flashing -4Nl  -Brown

Tri  Built 818-12 lnternally Braced Turbine Vent -12"

125 of 148



Aluminum  Drip  Edge -T Style (12')

Tri-Built Galvanized Steel  Base Pipe Flashing -4NI

Base Pipe Flashing -4 in  1

Galvanized Steel  Flat Step Flashing -8"x8" (50 PC/BD)

Step nashing is a crucial component used  in  rooring to provicle protection  against water inlrusiori at the interseclions between a roor aiicl
vertical structures, such  as walls, chimneys, or dormers.

Tear off and replace up to 6/12 pitch

Install  Hip/Ridge Cap

lnsl:all Starter

Install Drip Edge/Gutter Apron

Cut  ln/Install  Ridge Vent

Turbine Vent Install

Other -Dumpster-Large-Approx 5-7 tons of debris

ffp"(€
f`.v- qvkfuri¢u[

Layover Decking   ~

-Install 7/16" OSB sheathirig over existiilg  roof decking

7/16"x4'x8'  OSB

LayoverExistingDecking  ~  foEL     Futu¢g'    SregrL      Roof

Roof to Wall

-Remove existing wall  panels as needed to install proper roof to wall  flashing  as needed.
-Install new washer head screws

Grand Sequoia

-This option #2 total over and beyond option#1  total--~Sl 2,575.00

TOTAL S70,806.95

Starting at $726/month with  SACorn   .   APPLY
f   I   N  A   N   i-   e,

By Customei's  sigrialiiie,  CustoiT`ei  acknowle(lges  ai id  @gre€s  lliat they  `iiiderstaf`(I af`U  accept this  s(,`ope  ol  woik

This agreement is binding when signed  by you   fxr.eption woulc} be a  solicited  stil@ please see Notice of C<incellati..n

ADDITIONAL. TERMS AND  CONDITIONS

•1    MEcl.1ANIC'S  LIEN  NOTICE.  As  reci`iired  by Minnesota  law we  are  providing the following  notic,e:  (a) Any person  or c,c)mpany s`jpplying  labor or materials for this  improvemen? to yo`jr proper(y may file  a

llen tlqainst your property if that person or compaiiy is iiot pfjid for the contrlblitions:  and  (b) Under Mirinesoia law. yc)u liave the riqht to [)ay persoiis who supolied labor c)r materials for this Improvement

clirectly and deduct this amoilnt for our contrac,t price, or withholc; the amounts due them from us until  120 days  after completion of the improvement unless we give you a  lien waiver sigr,ed I)y persons who

supplied  any  labor or iTiot6`ricil  for the  impl'oyement  a/1d  who  gave yoil timely notjc;e.

2` Changes.  Any modirications to the Wc)rk require a written Change Order signed by Contractor and  Customef,  Changes may result in extra charges.  Customer shall  sign any Change Order for additional work

requlrecl by an enqineer or buildlng inspector_  All changes to this Agreement miist  be in writirig  signed by both Contractor and at least oiie Customer

126 of 148



3. Pertormanc:e.  Contractor shall begin the Work wilhin 90 days of slgriing this Agreemeiit or as soon (hereafter as practic,able    I ne Work s!iall be substan`iaHy completed in a ti"ely f@shioii coiisistent with

the time re(}uired to perform the Work in  a go()d ar`d workmanlike marmer pursuat\t to the performance guidelines provided prior (o ei`tering uito this Agreemeiit, barring `jnforeseen (1elays t`;ilch as weather,

av@ilability of vrorkers and  material,  or  other events  beyoi`d C`ort`rac`or's  control.

4.  Warranty and  Workmanshlp.  0?her than warrant'ies that  may be  reauiied  by law  CON1.RACTOR  HF_REBY  DIScl. AIMS ALE.  ()TrlEFI  WARRANTIES.  EXPRESS  OR  IMpl lFD   Contrac`t does not  warrant  against

clamage caused by `inusual weather c,onditioiis, ice dams, snow loacls, strong winds (50+ MP+1), hail  a!id damage caused  by  lee/snow removal, and ai`y other ca`jse unrelated to Contractor's wc>rk.  Contractor

f`lrther disclaims  all A(jreement claims, ne(jligem,e claims, cind all  other claims for which you  have ii(jt I)iovided Contractor with written or actiial  i`ot!ce within six months from the date of discovery of the

problem.

5   Cooperation   Customer agree-§ to cooperate with Contractor to complete the Work hereundcr and  make all  reasonable accommodations necessary  lf any additional or uiforoseen  work  ls required  atter

the Work has begun, Customer agrees tct sign a Change Order covering that  work ancj to be responsible for payment of the costs for the same.

6   Custoi`ier.s  obllgations.  Customer agrees` to provlde Contractor. at no costt clear acces`s (lncluding renioval of Ice and sflow) to work  areas for workers, vehicles, delivery and storage of materials alld

rubbish, and to hold Contractor harmless  from damage that may arise tnerefrom   Customer agrees to Indemnify ana  hold /;orilraclor harmless  lrom ai`y damage or !njury caii3ed  by any cons{ruction debris

that rema!ris on the property. Customer shall  prcivide C`ontractor with elcctricity, water, and other utilitics at no cost.  Ciistomer shall  Identify underground utilitics, if applicablc. Contractor shall not be

expected `o keep gates or doors closed or locked and Customer agrees to inclemnify and  hold Contractor harmless from claims arising tllerefrom, Excess construction matenal reiTiains `he property of

Contr@c`or  Customer agrees to remove and protect any r)er§onal r)roperty in or ricar the work area cind agrees to indemnify and  hold Contractor h8rmlcss from ,i!l cl,iims for damage that may oc:c`ir to such

property. Custcmer shall  not direct Contractor's workiiig foroes, provide materials or labor, or hire subcontractors without  Coiitractor's written authorizatic)n.  Extra trips caused by Customer will result in a

$200.00 per mp ch,irge.

7.  Existii`g  Coridition3.  Tl`is AgrceiTient is  based  solely  on  Cuslomer.s  represenla`loiis  ai`d  Coi`liaclo/'s  ol)servalioris  at tl`e  lirne  of  ll`is  AgleeiT`ent.  Customer a8surnes  all  liabillty  and  respoiisibillty  for pre-

existing or concealed conditions   Contractor may suspend Work if pre-ex.sting or unknown conditions require adclitional work until Contractor and  Customer reach  agreement thereon   Existing oiit ot square

and OIL,mb conditions may rcquire similar ccmditions ln the new work, Contractor docs not  assume responsibili`y for pro-c`xisting building code, zonlng, othc`r violations, or other Inadequate coiiaitlons

currently exist!rig on the property  Some improvements  may vary {rom the Agreement as to colc)I, brand, gr@Ge, and actual dimensioils   Customer grants Contiactor the right to make variatlons  substitutlons,

or ch@nge§ requlrcd by gove,'nment@l rc`gulatioris  or other changes th.it do not rna:erially affect deslgn and quality.  Contractor doc.s not wai.r@iit or represent tlicit its work will prevent or elimina{e ice

accumulatioii or ice dams  and the Customer agrees that Contractor is  iiot respons.ible tor the same.

8.  Hazardous Material. Customer assumes complete liability and responsibility for all hazardous conditions inclucling, asbestos, mold, lead. or other hazardous or harmful materials that may ex`st at or within

the property.  All such conditions shall be considered to pro-date Cor`{ractor.s work,  arid Contractor may stop work until the problem is removed   Cus`omer agrees to indemmfy and hold Contractor harmless

from mold. fungus, or biological material claims and damages as sot forth  c>n the accompanyi'ng  Mold Notice and Waiver

9.  Insurai`ce.  C`ori`ractor  iT`ainlair\s  irtsurai`ce policies  covering  iLs  general  liability  and  workers'  comper`s8tion obligation3  as  requirecl  by  law

10. Canccllat!on   lf Custoiiier caiiccls this Agri.ement bcfore Coiiiractor starts the Work, then Coiitiactor shall i)e eiititled to. as  liquidatcd daii`ages and not as a penalty. Its actual costs Incurred, inc)uding

?r`y re`Stocklng charges. pliJs ?0% of the Agreement prir.e   lf Customer .,ancel§ thif` Agreement without legal '!ght tc> do so after Contr{@ctor starts the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to, a`s llquida`ed

damages aiid not as a penalty. the entire Agreemeiit price.

11    Payment. Contractor will not start the Work until  it receives  the im`ial down payment, plus any add!{ional  amciiints Contractor may require.  F.:nal payment is due upon  subs(an`ial completion of the Work.

All  mvolces are payable with!n 30 cays`  Fa!!ure to make timely payment will  rr!sult in charges added to the ovcrduc aiiioum at the less(!r o`  18°`;, per annurTi (1,5% I)er month)  or the maximum charge allowed

by law  Customer agrees to pay all collection  costs, Including court, legal, and attc)meys  fees incurred !il the collec{ion of past due amounts  aiid/or protection of Contractors  interest in collecting payment

12.  Miscellaneous   lf any prL`vislon  of this  Agreement  is  four`d  uneiiforceable, tl`e availal)ilit}J and  enf(irceablllty of all  reii`atning  provisions  shall  reiT`ain  in full effect.  CustoiT`er  ackr`owledges  and  agrees  that

any dlspute aris`lng under or relatlllg to this Agreerrlem shall I)e subject  lo the exclusive |urisdictlon of the Hei`nepin Couiity District Court, State of Mir!nes`ola   Tlie headings herein a.e for rerereiice purposes

only ancl shall not affect the meaning or .Interpretation of thi§ Agreement

13   ^dvertising.  Customer authonzes contractor to  olace Its  advert!sing yard sign on Customer`s proper`y`  Customer grants Coiitractor iinlimited liceiise to record Images of the Work in any fonn and to

re|}roduce those !ltlages  for advei tis'ing  ancj  pi orr`citi()r`al  use

Company Authorized Signature

Customer Signature

Customer Signature

127 of 148



Ci14±ii=m±±_I__^cra4ideiritr"anyir
C®NSTRuCT!®EN               8791lwY63      Baldwin`W1540()2          Phone:  1-8()O-873-1451     Fax:  715-684_3859

ffi#°°fingscopeofwork-Clflss4flmpactResis±flut|
-       Rc`mov¢ all the existing shingles o  layc`l.) and dispose ol`in an ()usitc dumpstci.
-       Detach & Reset Existing LeafGuard Gutters & Downspout to prevent dam€`ge during roofing process
-       Repair rotten wood as needed on a time <ind materials basis ($150/hour per man plus materials)
-       Install GAP storm Guard ice and water protection to all eaves 6' minimum` rakes 3` minimum, ALL

perforations, and roughly 6" lip the side\ly'all behind flashing/siding
-       Install New sidcwall flashing per manufacturer specifications
-       New GAP Tiger paw synthetic underlayment will bc installed on the entire area of the roof including

where the ice & watei. is applied
-       Install new roofcdge to the pcrimctcr of the entire roof`-Color TBD
-       Starter shingles will  be used both at the eaves and the rakes.for superior wind protection.
-       Rcplzice fill waste \Jempipejacks, vents ancl  flashilig where needed
-       Install GAP Ridge vent for superior ventilation

-Install NEW  12" Turbines (3 Total)
-       Install GAP Lifetime Impact Resistance shingles in color choice of the homeowner -Color TBD

-Option  1 : Grand Sequoia Designer
-Option 2: Armorshield 11

-       Thoroughly cleanupjobsite at project completion
+       Provide "Master Elite" OAF Go]dcn pledge Non-Proratcd waiTanty

- 50 years Labor & Materials -
-       Provide Lindus consti.uction Lifetime workmanship waiTanty

ICE DAMS.  ROOFING WILL NOT ELIMINATE OR IIELP ELIMINATE ICE FORMATION OR ICICLES
AT YOUR F,AVF,S. I.,iridus makes no representation regarding the elimination or prevention of ice f`ormation
with the installation of new i.oofing.

Proiect Total/s`

Option 1 : Grand Sequoia Designer Shingle (1]
Option 2: Armorshield 11 (Impact Resistance)

>e) - $64,579

@E-€rilwtic   cJivLt

#     DOES   upr     WCCuC7c~     Kf~0"   fey(    ft+roitg    S7zrzL

No     AutouAM    TO     {atniccT     [r€i€Tiivc     <TE+-   ut"
FLnGiriNGS   +      €cnchJ    C^€KET<.

128 of 148



RooFI«fe a EXTER-!cR8

Bear Roofing & Exteriors
lnc.
3521  Commerce BIvd.
White Bear Lake, MN
55110
Phone: 651-407-1987

Fax: 651 -407-1552

Company Representative
Robert Schintz
Phone: (651 ) 407-1987
bob@bearexterior.com

Jeff stanton     `
657 Wisconsin 35
0sceola, Wl  54020
(715) 294-0165

A-ROOFING ASPHALT Section

ROOF ESTIMATE
rj8|2:]/2fJ24

#    Nty     C,oT|O;I   Fo,,.¢:.,,f f iovc€rfurtrt
OC{Kictlc    fG~    fcJ.ru'"   €rz#L

#    N°     try ^A\dyf_.T  [2:fa:i  CcwlJwl`rik;   xp   SxpP    Le^KS

Job: Customer-2025913: Jeff Stanton

H Protect siding, bushes, and yard with plywood and tarps as much as possible

I Remove all roofing material and accessories down to the roof decking

H Rotten or damaged dimensional  lumber.if needed, is replaced at an additional cost of $4.50 a lineal ft.  If Plywood / OSB is needed,
to meet building code and  shingle installation requirements, will be billed at an additional cost of S40 / sheet, plus delivery charge,

plus current market material cost.

r] Installation of Total Protection Roofing System  Includes the following:

I Installation of Owens Coming  DURATloN  FLEX (Class 4)  architectural  shingle, installed per manufacture'§ specificatic)ns

•  Color Driftwood

F] Additional  layers of roofing, unknown at time of estimate, will be removed at an additional cost of $20 per sciuare`

I Ice and Water Shield -a layer of waterproofing installed to meet or exceed local building codes

I Synthetic Underlayment -Moisture barrier used in areas of the roof not covered by ice and water shield.

I Starter Strip -A starter shingle that is installed on the first row on the eaves of the roof

H  Hip an  Ridge Shingle -specialty shingle installed where two roof slopes come together

I Ridge Exhaust Venting -Rolled venting installed along the peaks of the roof to vent the attic space of your home

I Attic Exhaust Vents -3 Turbine vents on main roof and ridge vent the lower roof

r]  Bathroom  Exhaust Vent(s) -Installed

I  Kitchen  Exhaust Vent(s) - Installed

I Pipe Jack Flashing Boot(s) -Installed

I Drip Edge -Installed on the rakes and/or eaves where needed.

I Step and Dormer Flashing -Areas of the roof where shingles meet the wall, that need to be reflashed to meet code and installation
requirements, will be billed out at a rate of $65 / hour + materials in addition to the quoted price

I Complete clean lip, including magnet rolling the yard and driveway

I  Price includes all material, labor, and disposal charges.  Permit fees will be added to final invoice for accuracy.

I Any work needed, outside of the original scope of work, will be billed out at a rate of S85.00 per hour plus materials

TOTAL

-Quoted Pn.ce -includes a 2°/o discount for cash or check payments made within 15 days of invoice date.  Discount will be removed if payment is not

received with in  15 days of invoice.

-Financing -is available for qualifying customers. A 6°/a service fee will be added to the qiioted price.

•Credit Card Payment is accepted for payment. A 3.5°/o service charge will be added to the quote price.

c'ulL1

129 of 148



-We Propose Herby to furnish materials and labor-complete in accordance with spec`ifications provided in this contract, for the sum stated or per
insurance quote plus supplements

-All  material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices` Specified work and

quol.ed price Subject to change upon discovery of hidden defects, All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Owner
to carry fire, tornado, and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workers' Compensation insurance. Products and materials may be
substituted for equivalent products due to availability

~This proposal may be withdrawn with  in  15 days

-The following supplied documents are part of this agreement and hereby accepted: Additicinal Terms of Contract, Performance Guidelines, Notice of

Cancellation  Insurance Denial, Notice of Cancellation Solicitation, Covering Deductibles, Formaldehyde Notice,  Molcl Notice, Minnesota Statutory Warranty,
Renovate Right Brochure (Homes built before 1978) ,

ln the event this Agreement was procured through a home solicitation sale as deflned by Mirinesota Statutes Section 325G.06, you may rescind your
agl.eement as set forth ln the accompanying Notice of Cancellation` You, the buyer, may cancel this purchase at any time prior to midnight of the 3rd.
business day after the clate of this purchase. See attached Notice of Cancellation form for an explanation of this right. In all other circumstances, this
agreement is binding when signed by you and us.

Company Authorized Signature

Customer Signature

Customer Signature

130 of 148



MEMO 

To: Osceola Village Board


From: Neil Kline, Village Trustee


Date: September 6, 2024 


Re: Establishing an Annual Administrator Performance Evaluation Process

_____________________________________________________________________________________


One of the primary functions of the Village Board is the hiring and evaluation of the Village 
Administrator. Currently, we do not have a predictable, established process to conduct annual 
evaluations of the Village Administrator. The materials connected with this memo are intended 
to establish such a process.


Suggested Decisions: 
1. The Village Board discuss and adopt Document 1 — Draft Administrator Performance 

Review Form and its instructions and processes;

2. The Board delay tying the Administrator’s 2025 compensation to this specific performance 

review cycle while it is piloted in this first year. 


Discussion of Draft Administrator Performance Review Form 
In advance of this meeting, Village President Lutz connected me with PAA, the firm that 
conducted our most recent Administrator search, to see if they had off-the-shelf resources we 
could consider using in our process. I expressed my interest in a goals-based approach, and 
Darrell Hofland from PAA shared Document 2 — Village of Grafton Individual Annual 
Performance Appraisal Form. During our email communication, Darrell indicated that a goals-
based approach has been used for many years in many Wisconsin communities.


Document 1 — Draft Administrator Performance Review Form is a modification of the Grafton 
example. Under the Grafton example, performance measurement was connected only to the 
numerical ranking process seen on pages 2 and 3 of Document 2, and the goals were 
relegated to serve only as guide posts for personal action plans and development.


In Document 1 (the draft form for Osceola), I retained many of the performance criteria from 
Grafton, and added a stronger role for goals by including them in the point calculations. In my 
view, this allows for the goals to be given more weight in the process, and provides the Board 
and Administrator the opportunity to clarify or specify performance objectives which may not 
be covered in the ranking table.


Connecting Performance and Compensation 
The draft proposal includes a timeline for the evaluation cycle, which was developed to ensure 
that the full-year performance evaluation was aligned with the annual Village budget process. 
This is because I believe performance should be connected to compensation. In my view, this 
is a widely accepted practice in the private sector, and it creates an incentive structure that 
aligns the Administrator’s performance with tangible impacts.


We should not, in my view, connect compensation to performance in this first year as we pilot 
the process, but I believe it is important that we retain the option to do so down the road — an 
option I would like to see us exercise sooner rather than later.

131 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Village of Osceola

Administrator Performance Review Form


Administrator Name:__________________________


Evaluator Name:_____________________________


Evaluation Calendar Year:_____________________      Evaluation Date:______________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Instructions 

This document establishes an annual and collaborative review process for the Village Administrator.


Goals 
Goals provide an opportunity for the Board and Administrator to clarify or specify particular 
performance or development objectives within each category if the Board or Administrator feel that a 
particular aspect of performance or development is not reflected in the ranking table. Written goals are 
not required, nor are there any constraints on their number. Scoring for goals mirrors the scoring 
system in the ranking table (1 - 5, with 1 as poor performance and 5 as exceptional). 


Connection to Compensation 
The final Red Box score in the Score Aggregation Table is the number that impacts Administrator 
compensation decisions by the Board. 


Timeline and Process 
November: Proposal and initial discussion of goals (if any) by Administrator and Board in closed 
session. Board members and the Administrator should come to this meeting prepared to suggest 
language for goals they feel should be included in the annual performance review process. 

December: Adoption of final goals (if any) in closed session. The Board should consider input from the 
Administrator, though the Board alone has the final decision on what goals, if any, are formally 
adopted. 

June: Mid-year performance review. Administrator self-scores in writing using the enclosed forms, 
responding to all scoring tables and any goals, and this material is submitted to the Board in 
connection with the distribution of materials for the June Board Meeting. The Board then enters a 
closed session with the Administrator to discuss performance relative to the goals. This meeting is a 
check-in, where the Administrator can provide information on how performance is going relative to the 
goals and the Board can provide informal feedback.


October: Full-year performance review. In advance of the October Board Meeting, Board Members 
and the Administrator complete the full evaluation form, which they then bring with them to the 
meeting. During a closed session, and in discussion with the Administrator, the Board deliberates and 
decides on the Administrator’s performance on each performance criteria and any attendant goals for 
each criteria. The final scores agreed upon by the full Board are put into the Score Aggregation Table, 
producing a final, percentage-based overall performance score in the Red Box.


The full-board scores, along with the individual Board member evaluation forms, are then put into the 
Administrator’s permanent staff file. 


Role Delineation 
The Village Clerk is responsible for ensuring the steps proscribed in this process are held at the 
correct Village Board Meeting. The Village Administrator is responsible for distributing materials in 
connection with this process in a timely manner to the Full Board, and for maintaining the completed 
review documents in their permanent file.  

Page  of 1 11
132 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 1: Job Knowledge




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 2 11
133 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 2: Relationship with peers, supervisors, and elected officials




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 3 11
134 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 3: Decision making/judgement




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 4 11
135 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 4: Quality of work/attendance




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 5 11
136 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 5: Initiative




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 6 11
137 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 6: Adaptability/Flexibility




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 7 11
138 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 7: Communication Skills




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 8 11
139 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Criteria 8: Customer Service




Goal 1:		 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Goal Review Comments


Goal 2:


Goal 3:


Overall Review Comments: 


Score

Score

Score

Page  of 9 11
140 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
Score Aggregation


Scoring Ranges and Definitions 

Red Box Score of 91% - 100%: Exceptional (This individual excels in all aspects of the work.)

Employee is consistently exceptional in nearly all phases of the work. Creative and innovative problem 
solver. Shows superior judgment and self-motivation. Rarely misses a stated goal. Unlikely to be able 
to perform the function better. Superiority in performance should be clearly evident to peers.


Red Box Score of 81% - 90%: Exceeds Expectations (This individual exceeds many performance 
expectations.) Employee often exceeds expectations for the work. Uses initiative to solve complex or 
unique problems in their functional area. Thoroughly understands the work and produces favorable 
results. Effectively copes with unexpected situations and heavy workloads. This individual is an 
effective self-starter who sees opportunities and pursues them.


Red Box Score of 71% - 80%: Successful (This individual meets performance expectations and 
standards for the work.) Performance is consistently at levels which should be expected from well-
qualified, experienced and properly motivated employees. Employees performing at this level are 
considered to be meeting the expectations of the work and its responsibilities. This individual normally 
performs under limited supervision. Performance at this level is typical in well-managed organizations.


Red Box Score of 51% - 70%: Needs Improvement (Performance expectations are not consistently 
met.) Performance is below the minimum requirements for the position. The employee may meet some 
of the job criteria but results are below expectations. (For example, problems may be caused by a lack 
of judgment or inconsistent follow-through.) Needs coaching to avoid problems and improve 
performance. Performance improvement opportunities exist and targets for improvement should be 

Criteria Goal 
Score

Numeric 
Score

Total 
Score 
(goal + 
# score)

# of 
Goals

Max Goal Score

(# of goals x 5)

Total Possible 
Score (Max goal 
score + 5)

Total Score/
Total Possible 
Score

1: Job 
Knowledge

2: Relationship 
w/ Peers etc.

3: Decision 
making/
judgement

4: Quality of 
Work/
Attendance

5: Initiative

6: Adaptability/
Flexibility

7: 
Communication 
Skills

8: Customer 
Service

Totals

Page  of 10 11
141 of 148



Document 1 - DRAFT
established. ~ OR ~ Because of inexperience, newness to the position or an extended learning curve, 
employee has not yet met the expectations for the work. This is not a reflection on the individual’s 
ability or potential to perform, but an indication that there is more to learn to meet the performance 
expectations on this job before the next performance appraisal.


Red Box Score of 50% or below: Unacceptable (Expectations of performance are not being met.)

Performance is clearly below acceptable levels. Work is occasionally performed adequately, but lacks 
consistency and requires constant direction and supervision. Employee deals poorly with situations 
that are fairly routine. Retention of employee is dependent upon immediate improvement of 
performance. A Work Performance Improvement Plan should be implemented. Either a formal 
probation or disciplinary action may also be considered.

Page  of 11 11
142 of 148



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin 1 

Individual Annual Performance Appraisal Form 

Employee Name: Evaluated By: 

Job Title: Appraisal Date: 

Division/Section: Evaluation Period: From: 

Date of Hire:     To: 

APPRAISAL INSTRUCTIONS (Please read carefully before beginning appraisal.) 
This appraisal provides an opportunity to discuss individual work efforts and results with a primary focus to improve 
performance. Instructions for the individual sections of the appraisal form are listed below. The employee and the supervisor 
shall discuss the final employee ratings. A review of the previous year’s action plan shall be conducted and an action plan for 
the upcoming year must be established as well. 

Section I – EMPLOYEE APPRAISAL 
Job performance criteria are evaluated in this section in relation to the employee’s job description. Please use the 
characterizations under each rating level as an example of performance for that particular level. The Supervisor is to complete 
an independent evaluation of the employee’s performance. Once the appraisal is complete, the Supervisor and Employee are 
to have a discussion to review the performance ratings assigned by the Supervisor. The Supervisor has discretion/flexibility to 
adjust scores based upon input from the Employee. Scoring adjustments must be accompanied by specific 
examples/justification to support the scoring change. Any performance scores above or below a “3” must have supporting 
information provided in the comments section. 

Section II – FINAL PERFORMANCE RATING 
A final performance rating is determined utilizing the scores established in Section I. Consideration must be given to written 
comments as well since they are meant to support the reasoning behind scores that are awarded with specific examples.  

Section III – REVIEW OF PREVIOUS YEAR’S ACTION PLAN (GOALS) 
The employee and the supervisor shall review Action Plan in the previous year. In some instances (i.e., new employees, first 
time reviews) there may not be a previous year’s action plan for review. Goals set forth on this form are strictly for 
personal/professional development and are not scored as an individual performance criterion.  However, goal 
accomplishment or lack of follow through can be considered as a part of the appraisal scoring for an employee’s “Quality of 
Work” and/or “Initiative” criteria in Section I. 

Section IV – UPCOMING YEAR’S ACTION PLAN (GOALS) 
The employee and the supervisor mutually establish a set of goals for the upcoming year. These goals may be something 
that can be achieved within a year or may be established as a long-term goal that can be carried over into another year. 
Long term goals should establish a pre-determined completion date not to exceed 24-months. Goals set forth on this form 
are strictly for personal/professional development and are not scored. 

Section V – COMMENTS 
Include a summary of performance related comments on strengths, weaknesses, areas for development, exceptional 
accomplishments, specific problems, etc. Any performance scores above or below a “3” must have supporting information 
provided in the comments section. Please be specific. 

Section VI – SIGNATURES 
The appropriate sign-off must be provided at the completion of each step of the evaluation process. 

143 of 148

Neil Kline
DOCUMENT 2



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin  2 

I. EMPLOYEE APPRAISAL 
Instructions:  Select only the applicable criteria for each employee and check the rating box.  

 

A. GENERAL JOB PERFORMANCE REVIEW CRITERIA 
 

1. Job Knowledge (do not score this criterion for an employee who has been with the Village less than 90 days)             
SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Relies on others constantly.  
Requires assistance and 
frequent repetitive 
instruction.  Does not 
understand aspects of the 
job. 

Understands some aspects 
of the work, but is often 
unable to complete 
assignments. May need 
learning opportunities and 
improvement because of 
newness on the job. 

Understands how to perform 
nearly all aspects of the job.  
Able to work on 
unstructured assignments. 

Thorough knowledge of 
most phases of the work.  
Very knowledgeable of most 
aspects of related work and 
other related departments’ 
work. 

Broad, exceptional 
knowledge and skill.  
Understands why job 
functions are performed and 
the inter-relationships with 
other jobs. Keeps abreast of 
trends, developments, 
and/or new concepts that 
may improve job function. 

 
2. Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials 

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Indifferent about the work, 
department and/or the 
Village. Often complains, 
causes friction, behaves 
negatively toward others. 
Resents change or new ideas 
and concepts.  

Does not consistently display 
a positive outlook with 
regard to the work, 
department and/or the 
Village. May display 
emotions sufficient to 
disrupt others. Lacks 
appropriate tact or seems 
uncaring.   

Is positive in attitude and 
demeanor. Is even-tempered 
and tolerates difficult 
situations without hindering 
work performance.  Has 
understanding and respect 
for department and Village 
initiatives.  Willingly assists 
others when asked. 

Accepts responsibility and 
accountability for work 
assignments and problems 
that arise. Supports 
department and Village 
initiatives. Relates very well 
with elected officials, co-
workers and management.  
Can be relied upon to take 
initiative in support of others 
and helps when needed. 

Outstanding rapport with 
others. Shows great concern 
for the work and the success 
of the department and the 
Village.  Demonstrates true 
consideration of others’ 
opinions and contributions. 
Routinely volunteers or is 
assigned to special 
committees or teams 

 
3. Decision Making/Judgment            

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Does not demonstrate ability 
or desire to evaluate 
situations and make 
decisions.  Will not take 
responsibility for actions and 
depends nearly exclusively 
on others to solve problems.  
Does not realize 
consequences of actions. 

Has difficulty with identifying 
issues.  Needs improvement 
in gathering facts, comparing 
alternatives and providing 
solutions for those issues 
that have been identified.  
Shows poor judgment and 
requires close supervision.  
May be too new to offer 
effective decisions or 
evaluate alternatives. 

Demonstrates the ability to 
recognize problems, gather 
information, evaluate 
alternatives and propose 
appropriate solutions.  Able 
to make decisions and 
actions of a routine nature 
that are correct. 

Has ability to make difficult 
decisions and demonstrates 
well-thought-out solutions to 
problems in a timely 
manner.  Understands 
consequences of actions.  
Can be relied upon to make 
good decisions consistently. 

Makes prompt, effective 
decisions with limited 
information.  Takes 
responsibility for decisions, 
recognizes emerging 
problems, and promptly 
evaluates alternatives with 
consideration for short- and 
long-term consequences. 

 
4. Quality of Work/Attendance          

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 
 
 

Work is of very poor quality, 
sloppy, and inconsistent. 

Leaves routine tasks 
incomplete or does not 

follow up on issues. Requires 
substantial supervision and 

direction. Frequent tardiness 
or absence from work. Poor 

attendance record which 
impacts work quality. 

Does not consistently 
produce work to meet 

expectations.  Occasionally is 
careless about producing 

quality work product.  Makes 
recurrent errors. 

Produces work of good 
quality.  Meets standards 

and expectations for the job.  
Is accurate, thorough, and 
work is complete. Can be 
relied upon to complete 

assigned responsibilities in a 
timely manner. Requires 

only routine supervision or 
direction. Occasionally has 

absence or tardiness.  
Respects the leave policies 

and uses time off 
appropriately. 

Work is of high quality.  
Rarely makes errors.  

Exceeds normal 
requirements for the job.  
Dependable and steady in 
completing assignments. 

Works with minimal 
supervision.  Can be relied 
upon to check the work of 
others. Manages excused 

absences. 

Work far exceeds standards 
for the job.  Superior ability 

to be accurate, neat and 
thorough. Recognizes the 
broader implications of a 

project; goes beyond what is 
expected. Is relied upon to 

complete work with little or 
no direction.  Rarely has an 

attendance or tardiness 
issue.  Manages excused 

absences. 

 
5. Quantity of Work/Time-Management           

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Frequently fails to meet 
work volume requirements.  
Requires constant help to 
complete assignments. or 

avoids work responsibilities. 
.Regularly does not make 
good use of work time.   

Occasionally meets volume 
goals.  Does not always make 
good use of work time. Not 

normally dependable to 
complete assignments on 

time. 

Work volume meets 
expectations, given 

deadlines, and unexpected 
volume shifts.  Manages 

work time effectively. Has 
regular consistent 

attendance 

Occasionally surpasses 
volume goals.  Effort to 

complete work timely is very 
good.  May ask for additional 
work when initial goal is met. 

Completes assignments at a 
rate far above standards for 

the job.  Never misses 
deadlines.  Sometimes is 

ahead of schedule. 

144 of 148



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin  3 

6. Initiative              
SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Relies far too much on the 
help of others in finding 
answers and solutions to 
problems. Is not an active 
participant in group work. 
Avoids taking on new tasks 

or projects. 

Needs a better 
understanding of the 

importance of discovering 
answers and solutions 
independently. Only 
occasionally works 

independently. 

Effectively uses resources 
before seeking the help of 
others. Provides ideas on 

own responsibilities as well 
as others’. Works well 
independently, when 

necessary. 

Welcomes the opportunity 
to learn new concepts and 

strategies within area of 
expertise.  Knows when to 
seek answers and solutions 

independently before asking 
for help. 

Seeks out opportunities to 
grow and develop 

professional skills and 
knowledge. Often provides 

creative ideas and innovative 
actions to create efficiencies. 

Works with minimal or no 
supervision. 

 
7. Adaptability/Flexibility                       

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Uncooperative and unwilling 
to assist when faced with 
new responsibilities, work 
practices or changes to the 

work environment. 

Slow to adapt to change. 
Reacts grudgingly to new 

ideas or concepts. 

Usually adapts to new ideas, 
responsibilities and changing 

conditions to meet 
requirements. 

Ability to adapt to changing 
circumstances and handle 
stress.  Is open-minded.  

Listens to suggestions and is 
willing to admit mistakes. 

Willing to adapt to change 
and to promote change 

where needed.  Remains 
calm and is able to function 

under pressurized or 
frustrating circumstances. 
Can be involved in many 
projects simultaneously. 

 
8. Communication Skills          

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 Does not communicate 
clearly. Has difficulty 

articulating thoughts. Poor 
listener.  Unacceptable 

responses to public and/or 
peers. 

Lacks consistency in clearly 
and concisely conveying 
information. May have 
difficulty in formulating 

message. Written work is 
poor. May be too new to the 
position to be able to clearly 

convey job related 
information. 

Ability to clearly and 
concisely convey ideas and 

information most of the 
time. Written products are 
neat, understandable, and 

follow applicable guidelines. 

Communication skills are 
well established. Ability and 

experience shows 
consistently through solid 

communication efforts. 

Exceptional communicator. 
Displays writing confidence 

and enthusiasm. Is articulate 
and convincing in oral and/or 

written work.  Careful 
listener.  Provides 

appropriate and concise 
responses to public and/or 

peers 

 
9. Customer Service  

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Demonstrates little or no 
interest in assisting 

customers to determine 
their needs. Frequently 

abrupt or even rude. 

Provides assistance only 
upon request. Inconsistent in 

efforts to satisfy customer 
needs. Indifferent at times. 

Shows interest in helping 
customers. Can be relied 

upon to provide satisfactory 
service and please 

customers. Is courteous and 
helpful to both internal and 

external customers. 

Makes every effort to solve 
basic problems and address 

needs. Very professional and 
polished when dealing with 

customers. 

Consistently makes a sincere 
effort to successfully satisfy 

the customer needs. Is relied 
upon to assist customers and 

resolve the most difficult 
problems. Demonstrates 

service leadership. 

 
10. Safety   

SCORE  1  2  3  4  5 

 
 

Careless and unobservant of 
work environment and safe 
work rules. Demonstrates 

little or no interest in 
reporting safety related 

concerns. 

Needs to be reminded of 
safe work habits. Does not 
appear to care about safety 

precautions. 

Observes all safety rules 
satisfactorily and 

understands the importance 
of sound safety practices. 

Very attentive to safe 
practices and procedures. 
Above average concern for 

others’ welfare. Reports 
and/or takes care of unsafe 

conditions promptly. 

Meticulous in attention to a 
safe environment and safe 

practices. Recommends ways 
to make area and 

performance of duties safer.  
Proactively reports potential 

safety hazards or unsafe 
work settings or procedures. 

 
 

 

Employee’s Job Performance Criteria Number of Items Scored:        
                                                                                 Maximum 10 

 

Total Points for Part I 

 

Total Score       
                                      Maximum 50 

 
 
 
 145 of 148



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin  4 

II.  PERFORMANCE RATING 
 
Performance Rating Scoring Ranges and Definitions: The following definitions describe the five rating levels. Scores shall be 
rounded to two (2) decimal points. They are meant as a guide to help distinguish each particular rating level.      

 
Score of 4.85 – 5.00:  Exceptional   (This individual excels in all aspects of the work.) 
Employee is consistently exceptional in nearly all phases of the work. Creative and innovative problem solver. Shows superior 
judgment and self-motivation. Rarely misses a stated goal. Unlikely to be able to perform the function better. Superiority in 
performance should be clearly evident to peers. 
 
Score of 4.50 – 4.84:  Exceeds Expectations (This individual exceeds many performance expectations.) 
Employee often exceeds expectations for the work. Uses initiative to solve complex or unique problems in their functional 
area. Thoroughly understands the work and produces favorable results. Effectively copes with unexpected situations and 
heavy workloads. This individual is an effective self-starter who sees opportunities and pursues them. 

 
Score of 3.00 – 4.49:  Successful (This individual meets performance expectations and standards for the work.) 
Performance is consistently at levels which should be expected from well-qualified, experienced and properly motivated 
employees. Employees performing at this level are considered to be meeting the expectations of the work and its 
responsibilities. This individual normally performs under limited supervision. Performance at this level is typical in well-
managed organizations. 
 
Score of 2.50 – 2.99:  Needs Improvement (Performance expectations are not consistently met.) 
Performance is below the minimum requirements for the position. The employee may meet some of the job criteria but 
results are below expectations. (For example, problems may be caused by a lack of judgment or inconsistent follow-through.) 
Needs coaching to avoid problems and improve performance. Performance improvement opportunities exist and targets for 
improvement should be established. ~ OR ~ Because of inexperience, newness to the position or an extended learning curve, 
employee has not yet met the expectations for the work. This is not a reflection on the individual’s ability or potential to 
perform, but an indication that there is more to learn to meet the performance expectations on this job before the next 
performance appraisal. 
 
Score of 2.49 or below:  Unacceptable (Expectations of performance are not being met.) 
Performance is clearly below acceptable levels. Work is occasionally performed adequately, but lacks consistency and 
requires constant direction and supervision. Employee deals poorly with situations that are fairly routine. Retention of 
employee is dependent upon immediate improvement of performance. A Work Performance Improvement Plan should be 
implemented. Either a formal probation or disciplinary action may also be considered. 

 

 
Final Performance Rating Calculation: 

Instructions:   
 

Add all the individual ratings together and divide 
by the total number of applicable criteria used in 

the evaluation. 
 

Example Calculation: 
35 total points / 10 criteria = 3.50 performance 

rating 

Total Points 
Awarded  

for Applicable 
Criteria 

 
(Max of 50) 

Divided 
By 

 
/ 

Total # of Criteria 
 

(Max of 10) 
Performance Rating 

  
      

 
/ 

 
      

 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 

146 of 148



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin  5 

III. REVIEW OF PREVIOUS YEAR’S ACTION PLAN (Insert goals from last year’s plan)   
Instructions:  To be completed only if the employee had an Action Plan in the previous year. 

Goal A.        
Progress Comments:       

Goal B.        
Progress Comments:       

Goal C.        
Progress Comments:       

 
 

IV.   FY20      (year) ACTION PLAN  

Instructions:  Supervisor and Employee to complete a mutually agreed upon Action Plan for the upcoming year. 

Goal A.        
Comments:       

Goal B.        
Comments:       

Goal C.        
Comments:       

 
 

147 of 148



Village of Grafton, Wisconsin  6 

III. COMMENTS:  
Instructions:  Employee and/or Reviewer may provide comments regarding the appraisal.  

Any criteria scored above/below 3 must be noted here with information/examples supporting the criteria score. 
 

  

 
IV.  EVALUATION APPROVALS AND SIGNATURES 
 
 

Employee Signature / Date: _________________________________________________________ 

Reviewer Signature / Date:   _________________________________________________________ 

Department Head Signature / Date:  _________________________________________________________ 

Village Administrator Signature / Date:  _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

Employee:        

Reviewer:        
 

For Administrative Use Only: 
 

x Final Evaluation Score applied to the Performance Merit Adjustment Calculation Table in the Compensation Plan    

x Based upon the above performance appraisal results, the named employee is eligible for a cost-of-living wage adjustment of ____ %. 

x Based upon the above performance appraisal results, the named employee is eligible for a merit adjustment of an additional ____ %. 

x Based upon the above performance appraisal results, the named employee shall complete a Performance Improvement Plan _____ 
 

Adjustments are to be added to employee’s base rate  /    paid as a lump sum in accord with the salary structure and pay grade procedures.   

148 of 148


	Item 2_09-10-2024_Village Board Agenda
	Item 3a_08-14-2024_Village Board Minutes
	Item 3bi_09-06-2024_Alcohol License Memo
	Item 3bi_CCH Alcohol App
	Item 3bii_09-05-2024_Regular Operator License Memo
	Item 3biic_09-05-2024 Operator's Licenses
	Item 3biid_Thiel Oper License App
	Item 3biii_09-06-2024_Special Events Application Memo
	Item 3biiia_Special Event App_Valley Brewfest_08_22_24
	20240822142637238
	20240822142950757

	Item 3biiib_Special Event App_Pumpkin Express
	Item 3ci_08-08-2024_Admin & Finance Minutes
	Item 3cii_Osceola Airport Commission Minutes 7-15-24
	Item 3ciii_Library Minutes July 2024
	Item 3civ_08-06-2024 Planning Commission Minutes
	Item 3d_Disbursements
	Item 3e_YTD GF Summary Budget Report 2024 Updated 8-31-2024
	Item 5ai_Sept 2024 Director's Report
	Item 5aiii_August 2024 OPD Board Report
	Item 5aiv_09-06-2024_August 2024 DPW Board Update
	Item 5av_09-06-2024 Utilities Board Update
	Item 5avi_VOS August 2024
	Item 5avi_VOS YTD 2024
	Item 5b_August Director's Report - Main Street
	Item 6a_08-22-2024 Additional Poll Worker 2024-2025 Appointments
	Item 6b_09-06-2024_Oakey Park Parking Lot Phase 1 Memo
	Item 6b_Oakey Park Parking Lot Quotes
	Item 6d_impact fees
	Item 6d_VofOsceola Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Update - Stantec.Version6
	Item 6di_Local Comparison
	Sheet1

	Item 6e_Pinnacle Memo
	Item 6ei_Pinnacle Land Development Map
	Item 6eii_Pinnacle Land Development Map 2
	Item 6f_9-6-24 Bach
	Item 6g_9-6-24 Police
	Item 6h_9-6-24 Fire Roof
	Item 6hi_Osceola Fire Hall Sunrise Estimate
	Item 6hii_Osceola Fire Hall Lindus Construction Estimate
	Item 6hiii_Osceola Fire Hall Bear Roofing Estimate
	Item 6j_Administrator Evaluation Materials for September Board Meeting

	Employee Name: 
	Job Title: 
	Division/Section: 
	Date of Hire: 
	Evaluated By: 
	Appraisal Date: 
	Evaluation Period From: 
	Evaluation Period To: 
	1: Job Knowledge: Off
	2: Job Knowledge: Off
	3: Job Knowledge: Off
	4: Job Knowledge: Off
	5: Job Knowledge: Off
	1: Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials: Off
	2: Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials: Off
	3: Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials: Off
	4: Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials: Off
	5: Relationship with Peers/Supervisor(s)/Elected Officials: Off
	1: Decision Making/Judgment: Off
	2: Decision Making/Judgment: Off
	3: Decision Making/Judgment: Off
	4: Decision Making/Judgment: Off
	5: Decision Making/Judgment: Off
	1: Quality of Work/Attendance: Off
	2: Quality of Work/Attendance: Off
	3: Quality of Work/Attendance: Off
	4: Quality of Work/Attendance: Off
	5: Quality of Work/Attendance: Off
	1: Quantity of Work/Time-Management: Off
	2: Quantity of Work/Time-Management: Off
	3: Quantity of Work/Time-Management: Off
	4: Quantity of Work/Time-Management: Off
	5: Quantity of Work/Time-Management: Off
	1: Initiative: Off
	2: Initiative: Off
	3: Initiative: Off
	4: Initiative: Off
	5: Initiative: Off
	1: Adaptability/Flexibility: Off
	2: Adaptability/Flexibility: Off
	3: Adaptability/Flexibility: Off
	4: Adaptability/Flexibility: Off
	5: Adaptability/Flexibility: Off
	1: Communication Skills: Off
	2: Communication Skills: Off
	3: Communication Skills: Off
	4: Communication Skills: Off
	5: Communication Skills: Off
	1: Customer Service: Off
	2: Customer Service: Off
	3: Customer Service: Off
	4: Customer Service: Off
	5: Customer Service: Off
	1: Safety: Off
	2: Safety: Off
	3: Safety: Off
	4: Safety: Off
	5: Safety: Off
	Number of Items Scored: 
	Total Score: 
	Total Score_2: 
	Number of Items Scored_2: 
	Performance Rating: 
	Goal A Progress Comments: 
	Goal B Progress Comments: 
	Goal C Progress Comments: 
	Year: 
	Goal A Comments: 
	Goal B Comments: 
	Goal C Comments: 
	Employee Comments: 
	Reviewer Comments: 
	Final Evaluation Score: 
	COLA: 
	Merit: 
	Performance Improvement Plan: [No]
	Adjustment added to base rate: Off
	Adjustment paid as a lump sum: Off


